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BRIDGEWATER RETIREMENT COMMUNITY

CONTINUING CARE PROVIDER DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

JANUARY 2024

NOTICE

This Disclosure Statement has been prepared, and is being provided, in accordance with
Virginia's “Continuing Care Provider Registration and Disclosure Act,” Chapter 49 of Title
38.2 of the Code of Virginia. The filing of this Disclosure Statement with the State
Corporation Commission, as required by the Act, does not constitute approval,
recommendation or endorsement of Bridgewater Retirement Community’s facilities by
the State Corporation Commission.



Continuing Care Provider

Bridgewater Village, Inc. (“the Village”), a Virginia nonstock corporation doing business
as Bridgewater Retirement Community, is located at 302 N. Second Street, Bridgewater,
Virginia 22812.

The Village operates under the following corporate structure. Bridgewater HealthCare,
Inc. (“Bridgewater HealthCare”) is the “parent” corporation of the Village, Bridgewater
Home, Inc.,, (the “Home”), and Bridgewater HealthCare Foundation, Inc. (the
“Foundation”), its three “subsidiaries.” This relationship is established by Bridgewater
HealthCare being the sole member of the Village, Home and Foundation, all of which are
Virginia nonstock, member corporations. “Bridgewater Retirement Community” is the
trade name under which Bridgewater HealthCare, the Village and the Home operate.

The Village is devoted primarily to providing residence to persons capable of independent
living, while the Home is devoted primarily to providing residence to those who need
assistance in the activities of daily living or health care services. Bridgewater HealthCare
handles many of the business functions of the Village and Home. The Foundation serves
as the fundraising arm for Bridgewater Retirement Community. An organizational chart
of Bridgewater Retirement Community is attached as “Attachment A.”

Bridgewater Healthcare is 33.33% owner of First Choice Healthcare Services, LLC, a
Virginia limited liability company (“First Choice”), which provides home healthcare
services in the Harrisonburg/Rockingham County market area. Bridgewater Healthcare
residents who wish to engage First Choice do so directly with First Choice.

Officers, Directors, Trustees, Managing and General Partners, and Certain Persons Who
Hold Equity or Beneficial Interests

The names and business addresses of the officers and directors of Bridgewater
HealthCare, the Village, Home and Foundation are as follows:

BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC.

Officers:
Rodney D. Alderfer James A. Weaver
President VP of Finance and Treasurer
302 N. Second Street 302 N. Second Street
Bridgewater, VA 22812 Bridgewater, VA 22812

Pam S. Sherman

Anne O’'Donohue Executive Assistant and
VP of Support Services Operating Board Secretary
302 N. Second Street 302 N. Second Street
Bridgewater, VA 22812 Bridgewater, VA 22812



Directors:

Henry Hawkins Betsy L. Hedrick

1786 Massanutten Springs Road 108 Bartley Street
Rockingham, VA 22801 Dayton, VA 22821

William (Bill) Kyger Jr. Craig Landes

6710 Vista Heights Rd. 3597 Oak Ridge Rd.
Bridgewater, VA 22801 Mt. Crawford, VA 22821
Sherry Mongold John N. Neff

2955 Cullison Ct. 456 Myers Avenue
Rockingham, VA 22801 Harrisonburg, Va 22801
Larry Powell Abram J. Shearer (Chair)
407 Pine Top Road 907 Ridgewood Rd.

Ft. Defiance, VA 24437 Harrisonburg, VA 22801
Jennifer E. Shirkey Ann B. Siciliano

130 Leonard Court 916 Mockingbird Dr.
Harrisonburg, VA 22801 Harrisonburg, VA 22801
Robert C. Wheatley

1531 Cumberland Drive

Harrisonburg, VA 22801

BRIDGEWATER VILLAGE, INC.

Officers:
Rodney D. Alderfer James A. Weaver
President VP of Finance and Treasurer
302 N. Second Street 302 N. Second Street
Bridgewater, VA 22812 Bridgewater, VA 22812

Jeannette W. Suter
VP of Independent Living
302 N. Second Street
Bridgewater, VA 22812
Directors:  Same as the Board of Directors of Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc.

BRIDGEWATER HOME, INC.

Officers:
Rodney D. Alderfer James A. Weaver
President VP of Finance and Treasurer
302 N. Second Street 302 N. Second Street
Bridgewater, VA 22812 Bridgewater, VA 22812



Jeffrey W. Lambert

VP of Health Services
302 N. Second Street
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Directors:  Same as the Board of Directors of Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc.

BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION, INC.

Officers:

Rodney D. Alderfer
President

302 N. Second Street
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Carolyn S. Budd

VP of Development& Public Relations

302 N. Second Street
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Directors:

James A. Weaver

VP of Finance and Treasurer
302 N. Second Street
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Tammy Jordan

Executive Assistant and
Foundation Board Secretary
302 N. Second Street
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Ray Albers
116 Meadow Lane
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Robert (Bob) Armbruster
1294 Cumberland Drive
Harrisonburg, VA 22801

Janessa Baker (Vice Chair)
2400 Breckenridge Court
Harrisonburg, VA 22801

Heather Barkey
715 N. Main Street
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Anita Beckman
1529 Mt. Crawford Ave.
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Charles (Bill) Blair
210 Virginia Ave. #206
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Sally Jane Conner
8 Janet Lane
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Hattie Driver
210 Virginia Ave. #221
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Beverly Eye
204 Tiffany Drive
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Theodore (Ted) Flory
106 Miller Drive
Bridgewater, VA 22812

Stephan Hess
620 Confederacy Dr.
Penn Laird, VA 22846

Rufus Huffman
210 VA Ave. #230
Bridgewater, VA 22812




Matthew Robinson (Chair)
8147 Ottobine Road
Dayton, VA 22821

Business Experience of (Section A); Acquisition of Goods and Services from (Section B);
and Criminal, Civil and Regulatory Proceedings Against (Section C) the Provider; its
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Managing and General Partners; Certain Persons Who Hold
Equity or Beneficial Interests; and the Management

Section A — Business Experience

The business experience of the executive management team of Bridgewater Retirement
Community is as follows:

Rodney D. Alderfer, President. Mr. Alderfer graduated from Eastern Mennonite University
in 1987 with a B.S. in Accounting. He worked in public accounting from 1987-1991 and
earned his CPA in 1992 and his MBA from Eastern Mennonite University in 2011. Mr.
Alderfer is a licensed nursing home administrator. Mr. Alderfer came to Bridgewater
Retirement Community from Wampler Foods in 1998 as the Controller. He was promoted
to Vice President of Health Services in August 2005, serving in this position until July 1,
2008, when he was promoted to President of Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc., and its
affiliates.

James A. Weaver, Vice President of Finance. Mr. Weaver earned a B.S. in Business
Administration and Accounting from Eastern Mennonite University in Harrisonburg,
Virginia in 1985. Following graduation, Mr. Weaver worked for five years as a CPA in a
local accounting firm. Mr. Weaver was hired as Vice President of Finance for Bridgewater
HealthCare in 1990. He also serves as Treasurer to Bridgewater HealthCare and its
affiliates.

Jeannette W. Suter, Vice President of Independent Living. Mrs. Suter obtained both her
B.S. in Social Work and M.S. in Public Administration from James Madison University.
She began her career as a social worker in 2002. Since 2003, Mrs. Suter’s professional
career has been in senior living organizations. Mrs. Suter came to Bridgewater
Retirement Community in September 2020.

Jeffrey W. Lambert, Vice President of Health Services. Mr. Lambert graduated from
Bridgewater College with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration with
a concentration in accounting in 1999. He began his career in public accounting and
earned his CPA certificate in 2002. Mr. Lambert came to Bridgewater Retirement
Community in June of 2005 as the Controller. He served in that capacity until June of
2014 when he was promoted to Vice President of Health Services. Mr. Lambert received
his Nursing Home Administrator license in February 2019.




Carolyn S. Budd, Vice President for Development & Public Relations. Ms. Budd graduated
from James Madison University in 1988 with a B.B.A. in Computer Information Systems.
She worked for NCR Corporation as a Systems Engineer until returning to graduate school
to earn an M.S. in Management Information Systems from the University of Virginia. After
graduating, she taught Computer Information Systems in the College of Business at the
University of North Carolina — Greensboro and in the College of Business at James
Madison University. Ms. Budd joined the Bridgewater HealthCare Foundation Board in
2000 and served as secretary and vice-chair. She accepted her present position in March
of 2013.

Anne M. O'Donohue, Vice President of Support Services. Ms. O'Donohue graduated from
West Virginia University in 2005 with a B.S. in Family and Consumer Sciences with a major
in Human Nutrition and Food. After graduating, she completed a year in the dietetics
program at Virginia Commonwealth University to then become a Registered Dietitian. She
began working as a dietitian and dining services director in retirement communities in
2007. In January 2011, she came to Bridgewater Retirement Community as the General
Manager of Dining Services. She accepted her present position in May 2015.

Joel R. Shank, Vice President of Human Resources. Mr. Shank graduated from Eastern
Mennonite University with a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration. After
graduating, he began a 17-year career in 2006 at Dynamic Aviation in the company’s
human resources department. While there, Mr. Shank held many human resource
positions and was named Vice President of Human Resources in 2016 until he made the
decision to accept an offer from Bridgewater Retirement Community in August 2023 as
Vice President of Human Resources.

Pam Sherman, Executive Assistant and Operating Board Secretary. Ms. Sherman
graduated as a Business Specialist from Elizabeth Brant School of Business in 1984. She
worked as a Legal Assistant for two local law firms before transitioning to the
Rockingham County School system as an assistant. Prior to coming to Bridgewater
Retirement Community, Ms. Sherman worked most recently at Sentara RMH Medical
Center for various administrators before being promoted to Office Manager and
Executive Assistant to the President and CFO. She joined Bridgewater Retirement
Community in November 2018.

Tammy Jordan, Foundation Executive Assistant and Foundation Board Secretary. Mrs.
Jordan graduated as a Medical Assistant from Elizabeth Brant School of Business in
1983. She worked as a Legal Assistant at a local law firm for 17 years, Office Manager
and Travel Coordinator for JMU Football for nine seasons and served five years as the
Executive Assistant to the COO at Sentara RMH Medical Center. She joined Bridgewater
Retirement Community in 2017.




Section B — Acquisition of Goods and Services

No officer or director of Bridgewater HealthCare, the Village, Home or Foundation owns
a 10% or greater direct or indirect interest in any professional service, firm, association,
foundation, trust, partnership or corporation or any other business or legal entity in which
it is presently intended will or may provide goods, leases or services to such entities of a

value of $500 or more within any year with the exception of the following directors.

Name of Board on Name of Description of Services Bridgewater
Director or which Business in and/or Goods Provided Retirement
Officer Director or | which Director to Bridgewater Community
Officer has Interest Retirement Community Payments to
Serves and How Contract Business in fiscal
Awarded year ended 9/30/23
Craig Bridgewater | Landes Heating | Installation and $168,646.00
Landes Healthcare, | & Air Servicing of heating and
Inc. Conditioning air conditioning units
Jennifer Bridgewater | Flora & Pettit, Legal Services $12,252.64
Shirkey Healthcare, | LLP
Inc.

Bridgewater HealthCare, the Village, Home and Foundation have received other offers for
the above-described goods and services which may be accepted from time to time
according to the needs of Bridgewater Retirement Community. Likewise, Bridgewater
Retirement Community is continuing to use several of the above-named businesses for
services in the current fiscal year.

Section C — Criminal, Civil and Regulatory Proceedings

Neither Bridgewater HealthCare, the Village, Home or Foundation, and no officer or
director of such entities (i) has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to
a criminal charge, or been held liable or enjoined in a civil action by final judgment with
respect to any crime or civil action involving fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion
or misappropriation of property or moral turpitude, (ii) has been subject to an injunctive
or restrictive order of a court of record, or within the past five years had any state or
federal license or permit suspended or revoked as a result of an action brought by a
governmental agency or department, arising out of or relating to a business activity or
health care, including without limitation actions affecting a license to operate a foster
care facility, nursing home, retirement home, home for the aged or facility registered
under the Continuing Care Provider Registration and Disclosure requirements of the
Virginia Code or similar laws in another state, or (iii) has been the subject of any state or
federal prosecution or administrative investigation involving allegations of fraud,
embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, or misappropriation of property.



Ownership, Location and Description of Real Property

The main campus of Bridgewater Retirement Community consists of approximately
53 contiguous acres, located in the Town of Bridgewater. The facilities of the
campus include:

o Independent Living Facilities for residents capable of independent living:
+  “Maple Terrace”, a 24-unit apartment complex.

«  “The Grove”, a 34-unit apartment complex that also includes a
library and bank.

+  “Hearthstone Manor Apartments”, a 28-unit apartment complex.
+  “Cottage Community”, 183 cottages and garden apartments
located throughout the main campus and the Crist Farm

Crossing campus.

o Assisted Living/Memory Support Facility for residents needing
assistance with daily living activities:

+  “Bridgewater Home”, a facility with a total of 161 beds capacity,
comprising 128 assisted living beds and two memory support
houses, “Gardner House” with 16 beds and “Concord House”
with 17 beds.

o Nursing Care Facility for residents needing 24/7 care:

“Huffman Healthcare Center”, a six households model facility
with a combined capacity of 127 nursing beds.

o Campus Common Areas:
“Houff Community Center”, includes a dining room, café, gift
shop, fitness center, beauty salon, meeting rooms and resident

activity rooms.

“Lantz Chapel”, seating capacity of 100.

o Campus Administrative Office Facility:

The building comprises the administrative offices for Bridgewater
Retirement Community.



All of the property and improvements are owned by Bridgewater Retirement Community.
A site map showing the various facilities on the Bridgewater Retirement Community
campus is attached as “Attachment B.” Bridgewater Retirement Community also owns
approximately 35 acres adjacent to the current campus, located in the Town of
Bridgewater, known as the Crist Farm Crossing campus. Crist Farm Crossing includes
recreational walking trails.

Affiliation with Religious, Charitable or Other Nonprofit Organizations (Section A); Tax
Status of Provider (Section B)

Section A — Affiliation

Although Bridgewater Retirement Community has a longstanding and ongoing affiliation
with the Church of the Brethren, there is no legal relationship between Bridgewater
HealthCare, the Village, Home or Foundation and any other church or charitable
organization.

Section B — Tax Status

Bridgewater HealthCare, the Village, Home and Foundation has its own Internal Revenue
Service 501(c)(3) determination letter that establishes its exemption from the payment
of federal income tax so long as the entity maintains its status as a not-for-profit
organization.

Services Provided Under Continuing Care Contracts

Sections 5 and 6 of the Village's Residency Agreement, a copy of which is attached as
“Attachment C” describes the facilities and services provided to independent living
residents of Bridgewater Retirement Community. A summary of those services follows:

Residence Each residence contains individually controlled heat and air
conditioning, smoke detectors, phone and cable outlets, and a
kitchen equipped with a range, refrigerator, garbage disposal, a hood
and fan. The following features are available in some, but not all, of
the residences: 24-hour emergency call system, sprinkler system,
unit washer and dryer, microwave oven, dishwasher, and ice maker.

Common Each resident is entitled to share with all other residents the use of

Facilities the grounds and designated common facilities of Bridgewater
Retirement Community, such as its dining venues, activity and
meeting rooms, library, fitness center, chapel, outdoor pavilion,
woodworking shop, art studio, observatory, and lounges, and to
reserve designated areas for special occasions.



Dining Services

Housekeeping

Laundry

Maintenance

Transportation

Dining services are provided at designated hours multiple venues in
the Houff Community Center and elsewhere. All residents must pay
a monthly meals allowance fee, as published from time to time. The
meals allowance can be used to buy food items at published rate at
the time of service.

Housekeeping services are available on a fee-for-service basis to all
residents, except basic, weekly housekeeping services are provided
to residents of Maple Terrace and The Grove as part of their Prime
Amenities Package. The Village is responsible for all housekeeping
of the common facilities.

Flat-linen laundry service is available to all residents on a fee-for-
service basis. In addition to the washer and dryer provided in some
units, the Village maintains common laundry areas for use by Village
residents, with all costs to maintain and operate the machines borne
by Village. The weekly laundering of resident-owned, flat linens is
provided to residents of Maple Terrace and The Grove as part of their
Prime Amenities Package.

The Village is responsible for all repair, maintenance, and
replacement of Village-owned property, equipment, and appliances
except in cases where such repair is required as a result of the
negligence or intentional acts of the resident or his or her
guests. The Village will determine the necessity and timing of all
repairs, maintenance, and replacements. Within the limits of its
personnel and facilities, the Village performs maintenance services
on resident-owned personal property and equipment on a fee-for-
service basis.

Transportation to local (Harrisonburg, Bridgewater, Dayton, Weyers
Cave) medical appointments can be scheduled in advance with
Resident Services/Transportation at no charge. Transportation for
non-local medical appointments within a sixty-mile radius may be
provided by the Village, at published rates and fees, upon request.
Unless it is an unexpected emergency medical appointment,
Resident Services/Transportation requires two (2) days’ notice for
local medical appointments and five (5) days’ notice for non-local
medical appointments. Village may use volunteers to provide such
transportation service. Trips to local grocery stores, shopping
centers, and malls are regularly scheduled by the Village as group
activities. Other trips may be available to Village residents at
commercially reasonable costs.



Utilities

Programs

Taxes

Physician
Services

Priority
Admission

Residents of the Cottage Community are responsible for paying the
cost of all their utilities, including water, sewer, electricity, trash pick-
up telephone (including installation) and cable television. Residents
of the Hearthstone Manor apartments are responsible for paying the
cost of all such utilities, except water, sewer and trash. Maple
Terrace and The Grove residents are responsible for paying for the
cost of telephone and cable services, but the Village provides water,
sewer, heat, trash pick-up, air-conditioning and electricity as part of
the Prime Amenities Package included in their Monthly Fee.

Social, educational, cultural, recreational, religious and wellness
programs are provided for those Village residents who wish to
participate. Tours and other programs are available at commercially
reasonable costs for those residents who wish to participate.
Volunteer opportunities are also available at Bridgewater Retirement
Community and in the community at large.

The Village pays all real estate taxes assessed against the
residences. Village residents pay all personal property taxes
assessed against their own personal property.

Resident may use his or her own physician or a physician affiliated
with Bridgewater Retirement Community on a fee-for-service basis.

The Residency Agreement does not entitle resident to assisted living
or health care services, but, in the event the resident applies for
admission, and is eligible for admission, to Assisted Living, Memory
Support, or Nursing Households of Bridgewater Retirement
Community, the resident’s application will have priority over non-
residents. If the resident transfers temporarily or permanently to the
Assisted Living, Memory Support, or Nursing Household segments of
Bridgewater Retirement Community, the resident will be charged on
the basis of Bridgewater Home's prevailing rates as are then in effect
during resident’s stay in such facility. The prevailing rates include
room and board, but do not include physician’s fees, therapeutic
services, drugs and medical supplies, or transportation. A resident’s
Monthly Service Fee to the Village continues in effect during a
temporary transfer outside of the Village for any reason.
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Fees Required of Residents

Sections 3, 7 and 10 of the Village’s Residency Agreement describe the fees required of
residents and the resident’s entitlement to a refund, if any, of these fees. These fees are
summarized below, and the current dollar amounts of the Entrance Fee and Monthly
Service Fee are set forth on the schedule of fees attached as “Attachment D.” The
schedule of fees is subject to change upon 30 days’ advance written notice to residents.
Changes apply prospectively (i.e., to the calculation of the Entrance Fee refund), but not
retroactively (i.e., to the Entrance Fee paid). Fees paid prior to a person’s occupancy, as
well as the Entrance Fee (regardless of when it is paid), are used to provide for operating,
capital improvement and financing needs of the Village.

Application Fee

Advance Wait
List Fee

Entrance Fee

Residency
Agreement
Deposit

Monthly Service
Fee

Transfer Fee

A one-time non-refundable Application Fee of $150 for one person or
$200 for two persons is due upon application for admission.

A refundable $1,000 fee is required for individuals requesting to be
placed on the priority wait list for admission to the Village. This fee
is applied to the Entrance Fee upon acceptance for admission.

A one-time Entrance Fee is due on the Occupancy Date, or 60 days
following signing of the Residency Agreement, whichever is later. For
residences under construction, a payment of 10% of the Entrance Fee
balance is required. The Entrance Fee balance will be due in three
equal payments: (i) one-third thereof within five (5) days of the
Village's notice to the Resident that the Residence is under roof, (ii)
when the drywall for the residence is installed, and (iii) when the
resident is permitted to occupy the residence. The Entrance Fee
entitles the resident to live in the residence until the Residency
Agreement is terminated (plus a 30-day period following termination
to vacate the residence). Attachment D sets forth the current
schedule of Entrance Fees.

Upon acceptance for admission, 10% of the Entrance Fee is due at
signing of the Residency Agreement.

Beginning on the first day of the month following Occupancy Date
and continuing until vacation of the residence, a Monthly Service Fee
is due. Attachment D sets forth the current schedule of Monthly
Service Fees.

A resident must pay a nonrefundable transfer fee of $10,000
whenever the resident has requested a change in residence within the
Village and the Village has granted such request. Additionally, the
resident must pay the difference, if any, between the original Entrance
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Refund of Fees

Fee paid for the resident’s existing residence and the current
Entrance Fee for the requested residence, as well as costs
associated with resident-requested upgrades or improvements to the
requested residence.

A resident has the right to cancel his or her Residency Agreement
within seven days after it is signed. Within 30 days of cancellation,
the Village will refund all payments made, without interest, except
the Application Fee ($150 per person; $200 per couple), and any
expenses actually incurred by the Village at the resident’s specific
request for custom improvements to the residence.

Likewise, if, before a resident’s residence is ready for occupancy, the
resident dies or becomes unable because of illness to become a
resident, within 30 days thereafter, the Village will refund all
payments made, without interest, except the $150 Application Fee for
one person or $200 for two persons, and any expenses actually
incurred by the Village at the resident’s specific request for custom
improvements to the residence.

If the Residency Agreement is terminated after the Occupancy Date,
then the Entrance Fee will be refunded, if at all, according to whether
the resident has paid an “Option One,” “Option Two,” or “Option Three”
Entrance Fee.

An “Option One” refund entitles the resident to an 80% Entrance Fee
refund if the Residency Agreement is terminated after the first day of
occupancy up to the end of the first year. If the Residency Agreement
is terminated on the first day of the second year and up to the end of
the second year the resident is entitled to a 65% Entrance Fee refund.
On the first day of year three and up to the end of year three, the
resident is entitled to a 50% Entrance Fee refund. The Entrance Fee
refund amount then declines 10% each year thereafter. No refund will
be due if the Residency Agreement is terminated after seven years.

An “Option Two" refund entitles the resident to an 80% Entrance Fee
refund if the Residency Agreement is terminated after the first day of
occupancy up to the end of the first year. If the Residency Agreement
is terminated on the first day of the second year and up to the end of
the second year the resident is entitled to a 65% Entrance Fee refund.
On the first day of year three and thereafter the resident is entitled to
a 50% refund if the Residency Agreement is terminated.

An “Option Three” refund entitles the resident to an Entrance Fee
refund of 100% whenever the Residency Agreement is terminated.
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Payment of refund due under Option One, Two, or Three shall be paid
within six months following vacation of the residence by the resident
to whom payment is due under the Residency Agreement or 60 days
following the date on which the residence is leased to and is occupied
by a new resident, whichever date is earlier.

In the case of joint residents, upon termination of the Residency
Agreement with respect to one resident, all rights and obligations
shall vest in and be assumed by the remaining resident(s), except
that any refund shall not be due until the termination of the Residency
Agreement with respect to all residents, at which time any refund will
be paid to the surviving residents in equal interests, or all to the sole
surviving resident.

Any refund due a resident who dies prior to the time of payment will
be paid to his or her estate, or pursuant to an effective “Pay on Death”
designation on file with the Village. Any refund due a resident who
marries another resident after admission (where both residents
choose to continue their residency status) will be determined and
paid when the residency agreements of both residents are
terminated.

With respect to any resident who transfers to Bridgewater Home,
Bridgewater Retirement Community reserves the right to use any
refund due under the Residency Agreement for the account of the
Bridgewater Home Resident.

Payments in excess of $1,000 made prior to the date on which a resident is permitted to
occupy his or her residence, whether a reservation deposit, the Residency Agreement
Deposit, an advance payment of the Entrance Fee, or otherwise, are deposited in a bank
escrow account that is separate and apart from the business accounts of Bridgewater
Retirement Community. Escrowed funds remain the property of the resident until
released to Bridgewater Retirement Community as permitted by law. Escrowed funds are
not subject to any liens, judgments, garnishments or creditor's claims against the
Bridgewater Retirement Community. A copy of Bridgewater Retirement Community’s
Escrow Agreement with SunTrust Banks, Inc. is attached as “Attachment E.”

The following table sets forth the frequency and average dollar amount of each increase
in the Monthly Service Fee for Village residents:
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History of Monthly Fee Increases

Year Monthly Service Fee Increase Monthly Enhanced Services Fee
for all Units Increase for Maple Terrace
2023 6.0% 6.0%
2022 6.0% 6.0%
2021 3.5% 3.5%
2020 3.0% 3.0%
2019 3.0% 3.0%
2018 3.0% 3.0%

Reserve Funding

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
Bridgewater HealthCare, the Village, Home and Foundation maintain their accounting
records on the accrual basis of accounting. Within this method, Entrance Fees are
recorded as deferred revenue when received and are amortized into revenue on an
actuarial basis. (See Note 1 on the September 30, 2023 Financial Statements.)

The Village has established an account with Truist Bank for payments the Village receives
for Streets and Future Improvements Fees and prepaid Monthly Service Fees. The funds
from this account are used to support the services to which those fees relate. As of
September 30, 2023, the account balance was approximately $3,395,084. Truist Bank
has designated Robert S. Norfleet, Il as the investment manager for the funds in this
account.

The Village does not hold Entrance Fees in reserve. Entrance Fee refunds are paid from
the general operating funds of the Village, usually from the Entrance Fee paid by the new
resident of the vacated residence for which an Entrance Fee refund is due.

The Foundation has also established an Endowment Fund, which receives contributions
that are solicited under various fundraising programs. The investment income earned by
the Endowment Fund are used to assist individual residents of the Bridgewater
Retirement Community who may have financial difficulty, as well as general obligations
of Bridgewater Retirement Community’s nursing operations due to losses incurred in
residency contracts to which the Virginia Medicaid program applies. Earnings from a
portion of the Endowment Fund, known as the “Good Neighbor Fund,” are available to
Village residents who qualify for financial assistance.
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The Investment Committee of the Boards of Directors of Bridgewater HealthCare and the
Foundation has designated CAPTRUST as manager of these funds. The performance of
the manager is reviewed semi-annually by the Investment Committee which has authority
to approve or disapprove the investment portfolio decisions of the manager. The current
value of Bridgewater Retirement Community’s Endowment Fund is approximately $17.30
million, of which $626,184 is the “Good Neighbor Fund.”

CAPTRUST has designated Mr. Terence H. Crowgey, an employee of CAPTRUST, as the
investment manager for the funds in Bridgewater Retirement Community’s Endowment
Fund. Mr. Crowgey is a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder through the
Association for Investment Management and Research and has over 52 years of
experience in portfolio investment management.

Certified Financial Statements

See Attachment G. The financial statements for Bridgewater Retirement Community are
presented at a consolidated level. Financial position and results of activities specific to
Bridgewater Village, Inc. are included as supplementary information in the Attachment.

Pro Forma Income Statement

See Attachment H. There were no material differences between last year’s pro forma
income statement and last year’s actual results of operations.

Admission of New Residents
To be admitted as a Resident of the Village, persons who apply for admission must

o be physically and mentally capable of independent living;

o possess the financial resources necessary to fulfill the payment obligations
anticipated by the Residency Agreement;

o be free of communicable diseases; and

o be at least 55 years of age at the time of admission.

Applicants who do not meet the minimum age requirements may nevertheless be
considered for admission on a case-by-case basis by the Village Administration.
Determination of an applicant’s eligibility for admission will be made in the sole discretion
of the Village. Qualified applicants are admitted to the Village without regard to race,
color, national origin, religion, sex, gender, sexual orientation, familial status, military
status, or disability.
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Access to Facility by Nonresidents

Bridgewater Retirement Community is the home of its residents. Guests are welcome at
any time so long as they abide by the rules and regulations published by the Village.
Guests of Village residents are permitted to stay in such residents’ units for up to seven
consecutive days. Thereafter, permission must be granted by the Village. Any guest may
purchase meals at prevailing rates, or the resident with whom such guest is visiting may
request that such charge be billed to the resident as part of the resident's monthly
statement.

Outside groups or individuals are permitted to rent designated areas of the Bridgewater
Retirement Community facilities for special events provided the function (i) is sponsored
by a resident, (ii) involves professional associations or educational institutions affiliated
with residential or facility programs, or (iii) serves the interest of the local community.

Bridgewater Retirement Community reserves the right to restrict nonresident access
when at its sole discretion it deems such restriction to be in the best interests of
Bridgewater Retirement Community and/or its residents, as in the case of a pandemic or
other health emergency, or when mandated by state guidelines or regulatory
requirements.

Anticipated Source and Application of Purchase or Construction Funds

Not applicable.
Procedure for Resident to File a Complaint or Disclose Concern

Residents of the Village may file a complaint or disclose any concern, in writing, at any
time, to the Village administration. The Village administration will use its best efforts to
respond, in writing, to such complaint within 15 days. If the resident is unsatisfied with
the response of the Village administration, the resident may appeal the matter to the
President of Bridgewater HealthCare. The President, likewise, will use his best efforts to
respond, in writing, to such appeal within 15 days. If the resident is unsatisfied with the
response of the President, the resident may appeal the matter to the Executive Committee
of the Board of Directors of Bridgewater Retirement Community.

Attachments
A Organizational Chart
B Campus Map
C Village Residency Agreement
D Schedule of Entrance Fee and

Monthly Service Fee for Village Units
Escrow Agreement

Consolidated Financial Statements
Pro-Forma Income Statement

Summary Financial Statement — Village Only

I omm
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BRIDGEWATER VILLAGE, INC.
RESIDENCY AGREEMENT

This RESIDENCY AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this __ day of
20 ___, by and between BRIDGEWATER VILLAGE, INC., (the “Village”) and

who, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, and for other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Definitions.

(a) “Admission” of Resident is deemed to have occurred upon the full execution of
this Agreement.

(b) “Application Fee” means the nonrefundable $150 fee for one person and $200
fee for two persons, paid at the time of application, as set forth in Section 2(a)
of this Agreement.

(c) "Assisted Living" means the designated sections of the Bridgewater Home, Inc.
in which residents are provided with room, meals, and assistance in daily living.

(d) “Bridgewater Retirement Community” means Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc., a
nonprofit corporation, and the member corporations which it operates; namely,
the Village (devoted primarily to providing residence to persons capable of
independent living) and Bridgewater Home, Inc. (devoted primarily to providing
residence to those who need assistance in living or health care services), and
the facilities and campuses which comprise them.

(e) '"Entrance Fee" means the one-time fee paid as set forth in Section 3(a) of this
Agreement.

(f) “Memory Support” means the designated section of Assisted Living in
Bridgewater Home, Inc., in which residents with mild to moderate cognitive
impairment are provided with room, meals, and assistance in daily living.

(g) "Nursing Household" means the licensed nursing facility of Bridgewater Home,

Inc. in which residents are provided with room, meals and 24-hour nursing care.



(h)

()

0

(k)

()

(m)

(0)

(p)

(a)

"Monthly Service Fee" means the fee paid monthly as set forth in Section 3(b) of
this Agreement.

“Occupancy Date” means the date on which Residence is available for
occupancy by Resident, advance written notice of which shall be given to
Resident by Village as early as reasonably possible.

“Advance Wait List Fee” means the refundable $1,000 payment a prospective
resident may make to be placed on the Village's priority wait list for a residence.
As provided in Section 3(a) such fee is applied to the Entrance Fee upon
Admission.

"Residence" means the following residential living unit:

, Or any other

residential living unit within the Village to which Resident may later transfer.
“Resident” means each individual who executes this Agreement, even if more
than one. In the event this Agreement is entered into by more than one
Resident, the obligations hereunder shall be joint and several.

“Transfer Fee” means the fee paid as set forth in Section 5(d)(i) of this
Agreement.

"Vacate" or “Vacation” means to cease occupying the Residence and remove all
personal possessions therefrom.

"Village Administration" means the Vice President of Independent Living or
his/her designee who is designated by the Bridgewater Retirement Community’s
President to administer the Village.

“Village Rules and Regulations” means the published rules and regulations
relating to the Village and resident responsibilities, as amended by Bridgewater
Retirement Community from time to time. Resident’s signature of this
agreement evidences Resident’s receipt of a current copy of the Village Rules
and Regulations.

“Broom Swept” means all items removed from residence, (except items boxed
and labeled for donations to charitable organizations including Bridgewater

Home Auxiliary for its ReRun Shoppe or to the Village Residents Association for
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the Village Barn, provided that organization has agreed to accept the items); no
belongings or trash left in closets, cabinets or refrigerator; floors swept and
carpets vacuumed. Should unlabeled belongings remain in the residence, or
should the designated organization not accept the donation in a timely manner,
upon Vacation they become the sole property of Bridgewater Village to dispose

of as it deems appropriate.

2. Admission.

(a)

(b)

Qualifications. Persons who apply for admission to the Village must (i) be

physically and mentally capable of living independently, (ii) possess the
financial resources necessary to fulfill the payment obligations anticipated by
this Agreement, (iii) be free of communicable diseases, (iv) be at least 55 years
of age at the time of admission, and (v) pay an application fee (“Application
Fee”) of $150 for one person or $200 for two persons at the time of application,
which Application Fee is nonrefundable regardless of whether admission is
granted. Applicants who do not meet the minimum age requirements may
nevertheless be considered for admission on a case-by-case basis by the
Village Administration. Determination of an applicant’s eligibility for admission
will be made in the sole discretion of Village Administration. Qualified
applicants are admitted to the Village without regard to race, color, national
origin, religion, sex, gender identification, sexual orientation, familial status,
military status, or disability. The requirements of subsection (i), (ii) and (iii) are
ongoing requirements for residency under this Agreement. The consequences
of becoming physically or mentally incapable of living independently, or of
contracting a communicable disease, are described in Sections 5(d)(ii) and
9(b)(i). The consequences of becoming financially unable to fulfill the payment
obligations under this Agreement are described in Section 7(f) and 9(b)(ii).

Joint Application. Persons who are legally married at the time of application are

automatically eligible for joint occupancy admission provided they both meet
the admissions criteria of Section 2(a)(i) through (iii), at least one of them is at

least 55 years of age at the time of admission, and the Application Fee is paid.
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Persons who are not legally married at time of application for joint occupancy
must separately meet admissions criteria of Section 2(ii) regarding financial
resources; or, if only one applicant meets admission criteria of section 2(ii), that
applicant agrees, by signing an attached Addendum to this Agreement, to be
responsible for the second applicant’s financial obligations to Bridgewater
HealthCare, Inc. while living in the Village as well as for 30 months after either or
both transfer to Assisted Living, Memory Support, or Nursing Households within
Bridgewater Retirement Community.

Marriage to Nonresident Spouse Subseqguent to Admission. If a Resident

marries a nonresident after Resident’'s Admission, provided the nonresident
spouse meets the admissions criteria of Section 2(a)(i) through (iii), the
nonresident spouse may be granted Residency through an Addendum of this
Agreement. Inthe absence of such an Addendum, the nonresident spouse will
be permitted to reside in the Residence with the Resident until 30 days following
termination of this Agreement, such 30-day period being the nonresident
spouse’s deadline for Vacation of the Residence. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if the nonresident spouse wishes to continue to reside in the
Residence following termination of this Agreement, and the nonresident spouse
is eligible for admission, the nonresident spouse may apply for admission to the
Village, which application will have priority over non-residents. Such application
must be received by the Village within the 30-day period following termination of
this Agreement. If admission is granted, the nonresident spouse will enter into a
new Residency Agreement and pay all fees associated therewith. If admission
is denied, the nonresident spouse must vacate the Residence within 30 days of
his or her denial of admission. During the time that a nonresident spouse
resides in the Residence, the Monthly Service Fee and the additional person fee
will be subject to increase. The nonresident spouse’s permission to occupy the
Residence is revocable by the Village for the same reasons, and according to
the same procedures by which, the Village may terminate this Agreement under

Section 9(b) with respect to Resident (i.e., the nonresident becomes a danger to
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(d)

himself or herself, applicable fees are not paid, etc.). Further, if the nonresident
spouse does not meet the admissions criteria of Section 2(a)(i) through (iii), the
nonresident spouse will not be permitted to reside in the Residence with
Resident. The Resident’s remedy in the event the nonresident spouse’s
permission to occupy the Residence is revoked, or the nonresident spouse does
not meet the admissions criteria, is limited to the Resident'’s right to terminate
this Agreement as described under Section 9(a).

Marriage to Resident Spouse Subsequent to Admission. If Resident marries

another resident of the Village subsequent to Resident’s Admission, the resident
who is relinquishing his or her residence may (i) maintain his or her Resident
status by signing an addendum to his or her Residency Agreement which
reflects the transfer to the residence of his or her spouse and the waiver of the
Monthly Service Fee, effective upon Vacation, with respect to the relinquished
residence or (ii) terminate his or her Residency Agreement and thus lose his or
her Resident status. Under option (i), the Resident and his or her spouse each
maintain his or her respective Residency Agreement, entitling each of them, for
example, to priority admission to the Assisted Living or Health Care Unit
facilities of Bridgewater Home, Inc. and, upon termination of both Residency
Agreements (the Resident’s and his or her spouse’s), to any applicable Entrance
Fee refund. Under option (ii), the Residency Agreement of the relinquishing
spouse terminates, entitling the relinquishing spouse to the Entrance Fee refund
to which he or she is entitled under Section 10, but also terminating his or her
priority admission to the Assisted Living or Health Care Unit facilities of
Bridgewater Home, Inc. Under option (ii), the relinquishing spouse becomes a
nonresident spouse to which Section 2(c) applies. In either event, the Monthly
Service Fee and the additional person fee will be subject to increase for so long

as two persons reside in such residence.



3. Fees Payable Upon Admission. Upon Admission, the Resident shall be deemed

admitted to the Village and the following fees shall be paid when due:

(a)

(b)

()

Entrance Fee. A one-time Entrance Fee of $ will be due to the Village,
with payment of 10% due upon Admission and the balance of the Entrance Fee
due upon the Occupancy Date, or 60 days following signing of this Residency
Agreement, whichever is later; provided, however, for any Residence that is
under construction at the time of Admission, payment of 10% of the Entrance
Fee balance will be due upon Admission and the balance of the Entrance Fee
will be due in three equal payments: (i) one-third thereof within five (5) days of
the Village’s notice to the Resident that the Residence is under roof, (ii) one-third
thereof within five (5) days of the Village’s notice to the Resident that the
Residence’s drywall is installed, and (iii) one-third thereof upon the Occupancy
Date. In the case of extenuating circumstances, Village may make alternate
arrangements with respect to the payment of the Entrance Fee, which
arrangements will be evidenced by an addendum to be attached to this
Agreement. If the Resident has paid the Advance Wait List fee or a Residency
Agreement Deposit, such fee(s) will be deducted from the Entrance Fee upon
Admission.

Monthly Service Fee. From and after the Occupancy Date and until Vacation by

the Resident (or, if applicable, by the nonresident spouse as provided in Section
2(c)), a Monthly Service Fee will be paid to the Village with respect to the
Residence. The obligation to pay the Monthly Service Fee will begin on the first
day of the month following the Occupancy Date. The initial Monthly Service Fee
for the Residence shallbe S__, and an additional person fee of $

The Monthly Service Fee is subject to adjustment as provided in Section 7 of
this Agreement.

Escrow. Payments in excess of $1,000 made prior to the Occupancy Date will be
deposited in a bank escrow account, which account is separate and apart from
the business accounts of Bridgewater Retirement Community. Escrowed funds

remain the property of Resident until the earlier of (i) the Occupancy Date or (ii)
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any applicable forfeiture of fees as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement, at
which time such funds become the property of the Village; provided, however,
that all funds or assets deposited in escrow shall be released to the Resident if
and as required by Va. Code § 38.2-4904.1(D), as amended. Escrowed funds are
not subject to any liens, judgments, garnishments or creditor’s claims against
the Bridgewater Retirement Community.

Right of Rescission. Resident has the right to cancel this Agreement by sending or

delivering written notice of cancellation to Village by midnight of the seventh (7th)

calendar day following the day on which it is fully executed. Such cancellation is
without penalty and all payments made by Resident shall be promptly refunded,
without interest, except for the Application Fee and any expenses actually incurred by

Village at Resident's specific request for custom improvements to Residence.

Resident is not required to occupy Residence during the seven-day rescission period.

If Resident does occupy Residence, such occupancy shall not be construed as a

waiver of Resident’s right to rescind the Agreement during the seven-day rescission

period. In the event more than one Resident has entered into this Agreement, the
rescission by one Resident shall be deemed a rescission by all Residents.

Facilities.

(a) Residence. Resident has a personal and non-assignable right to live in
Residence until Vacation of the Residence as provided in this Agreement, but
Resident’s rights hereunder do not include any right, title or interest in any part
of the personal or real property of Village. Resident may not allow anyone else
to use the Residence except as permitted by the Village Rules and Regulations
or with the prior written consent of the Village Administration.

(b) Eurnishings. All Village residences contain individually controlled heat and air
conditioning, a kitchen equipped with range, refrigerator, microwave oven,
dishwasher, ice maker, garbage disposal, a hood and fan, smoke detectors, and
phone and cable outlets. All apartment residences are equipped with a sprinkler
system. A washer & dryer are provided in The Grove and Hearthstone Manor. A

24-hour emergency call system is included in Maple Terrace and The Grove
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apartments. All other furnishings, including other electrical and mechanical
appliances, are to be provided by Resident, provided such furnishings do not
interfere with the health, safety and general welfare of Resident or other
residents of Village and otherwise comply with the Village Rules and
Regulations. Furnishings provided by Resident shall remain Resident’s personal
property. Bridgewater Retirement Community shall not be responsible for
damage or loss of any of Resident’s personal property by reason of casualty,
theft or otherwise.

Modifications to Residence. The following procedures shall apply with respect

to any alteration, renovation, or additions to Residence, including change of the

furnished equipment enumerated in Section 5(b) above, requested by Resident

(referred to herein as an “alteration”):

i.  Resident must obtain the advance written approval of the Village
Administration prior to any alteration, which approval shall be in the Village
Administration’s sole discretion. Any alteration shall be performed by
Village or its agents.

ii.  The Village Administration will bill the Resident the Village’s cost for such
alteration. If, as of the date of payment of such bill, Resident would be
entitled to an Entrance Fee refund should this Agreement be terminated as
of such date, and if Village Administration, in its sole discretion, determines
that the alteration constitutes a material enhancement to the Residence,
the Entrance Fee which the Resident has paid pursuant to Section 3(a) will
be increased by the amount of the alteration payment. Such adjustment
shall be evidenced by an addendum to be attached to this Agreement.

iii.  Unless otherwise agreed by the Village Administration at the time of
approval of the alteration, which agreement will be evidenced by an
addendum to be attached to this Agreement, the Village’s cost to restore
Residence to its original condition upon Resident’s Vacation of Residence
will be billed to the Resident.



(d) Relocation within Village.

Resident may request to change residence within the Village at any time.
Village may, in its sole discretion, grant such request if, among other
factors Village may reasonably consider, another residence is then
available, and Resident agrees to pay the difference, if any, between the
original Entrance Fee paid for the resident’s existing residence and the
current Entrance Fee for the requested residence, any Resident-requested
upgrades or improvements to the requested residence, and a
nonrefundable transfer fee of $10,000.00 (“Transfer Fee”). The Village has
no responsibility to assist with moving the Resident’s personal property in
connection with any Resident-requested change in residence.

Village may relocate Resident to another residence if it determines, in its
sole discretion, that such relocation should be made (such determination,
both as to the necessity of relocation and whether such relocation is
“permanent” or “temporary,” to be made by Village Administration, in
consultation with such persons as Village Administration deems
appropriate, such as Resident’s physician, Resident’s personal
representative, and Resident’s family) because the Resident presents a
direct threat to the health and safety of himself or herself or others or
Resident’s tenancy in the Residence will result in substantial property
damage and no reasonable accommodation (which, if made, would be paid
for by Resident) will mitigate this direct threat; for financial reasons as
described in Section 7(f); or for the general welfare of the Village and its
residents. In the event of such relocation, Resident shall cooperate with
the relocation and pay the difference, if any, between the original Entrance
Fee paid for the resident’s existing residence and the current Entrance Fee
for the requested residence. In addition, the Village reserves the right to
relocate resident due to Master Planning needs. In the event of such
relocation, resident shall cooperate with relocation and the Village would

provide a comparable residence and assist with relocation.
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iii.  Upon Resident’s relocation under Sections 5(d)(i) or 5(d)(ii), the Monthly
Service Fee will be adjusted as provided in Section 7. Any change to the
Entrance Fee or Monthly Service Fee shall be evidenced by an addendum
to be attached to this Agreement. No Entrance Fee refund or adjustment
will be due or required as a result of Resident’s move to a residence with a
lower Entrance Fee. In lieu of addendum, Resident may be asked to sign
new Residency Agreement.

(e) Common Facilities. Resident is entitled to share with all other residents the use

of the grounds and designated common facilities of Bridgewater Retirement
Community (i.e., dining venues, activity and meeting rooms, library, fitness
center, chapel, outdoor pavilion, woodworking shop, art studio, observatory, and
lounges), and to reserve designated areas for special occasions in accordance
with the Village Rules and Regulations.

(f) Additional Storage. Maple Terrace, The Grove, and Hearthstone Manor residents

have additional secured storage space available in the public area.

(g) Right of Entry. Village has the right to enter Residence (i) at all reasonable times
for inspection and to perform housekeeping and maintenance services, as
applicable, and (ii) at any time to respond to emergency situations.

Services. The services provided by Village as described in this Section 6 may be

changed by Village upon 30 days’ advance written notice to Resident; provided,

however, advance notice is not required in the event of changes required by state or
federal assistance programs or law, for nonmaterial changes, or for changes to
published fees.

(a) Dining Services. The Village offers dining services at designated hours in the

Houff Community Center and elsewhere. All residents must pay a monthly
meals allowance, as published from time to time. The meals allowance can be
used to buy food items at published rate at the time of service BRC dining

venues and participating local restaurants.

10



(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Housekeeping. Resident is responsible to maintain Residence in a clean,

sanitary and orderly manner. Housekeeping services are available on a fee-for-
service basis, at published rates, except basic housekeeping services are
provided to residents of Maple Terrace and The Grove as part of their Prime
Amenities Monthly Service Fee. Village will be responsible for all housekeeping
in the common facilities.

Laundry. The laundry of Resident’s personal items is the responsibility of
Resident. For this purpose, in addition to the washer and dryer provided in some
residences, Village will furnish and maintain common laundry areas for use by
Village residents, with all costs to maintain and operate the machines to be
borne by Village. Flat linen service is available on a fee-for-service basis, at
published rates, except that periodic laundering of resident-owned, flat linens is
provided to residents of Maple Terrace and The Grove as part of their Primed
Amenities Monthly Service Fee.

Emergency Call System and Security. Village residents must dial “911" on their

telephones to access local emergency response. Residents of Maple Terrace
and The Grove may access such response through an emergency call system
installed in each Maple Terrace and The Grove residence.

Maintenance and Repair. Village will be responsible for all repair, maintenance

and replacement of Village-owned property and equipment which it determines,
in its sole discretion, is necessary or appropriate; provided, however that Village
reserves the right to charge Resident for any such repair, maintenance or
replacement required as a result of the negligence or intentional acts of
Resident or his or her guests. Upon request, Village may endeavor, within the
limits of its personnel and facilities, to perform maintenance services on
Resident-owned property and equipment at an additional charge to Resident at
published rates and fees. Except in an emergency, maintenance and repair

services will be performed during regular, published working hours.
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(f)

(9)

(h)

Transportation. Transportation to local (Bridgewater and Harrisonburg) medical

appointments can be scheduled in advance with Resident
Services/Transportation at no charge. Transportation for non-local medical
appointments can be provided by the Village Team, at published rates and fees,
upon request. Unless it is an unexpected emergency medical appointment,
Resident Services/Transportation requires two (2) days’ notice for local medical
appointments and five (5) days’ notice for non-local medical appointments.
Village may use volunteers to provide such transportation service. Trips to local
grocery stores, shopping centers, and malls are regularly scheduled by the
Village as group activities. Other trips may be available to Village residents at
commercially reasonable costs.

Buildings and Grounds. Village will maintain all community buildings, common

areas and grounds, including lawns, walkways, and driveways. Landscaping and
decorative plantings will be provided and maintained by Village, as it deems
appropriate. Resident requests for special plantings must be made according to
the Village Rules and Regulations.

Utilities. Bridgewater Village'’s Community residents are responsible for paying
the cost of all their utilities, including water, sewer, trash collection, electricity,
telephone, and cable services, with the following exceptions: (i) For all Village
Residents under this agreement, Internet service via WiFi is provided at no
additional charge; (ii) For Residents of Hearthstone Manor, water, sewer, and
trash collection are included in the Monthly Fee; (iii) For Residents of Maple
Terrace and The Grove, water, sewer, trash collection, and electricity are
included in the Prime Amenities Monthly Fee. As applicable, utilities will be
billed directly to Residents by the service provider. Note that neither the Village
nor its vendors are responsible for the content of any media or materials, such
as television programming or websites, that are transmitted through provided

utilities including Internet service or cable.
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()

0

(k)

()
(m)

Trash and Garbage. All applicable ordinances of the Town of Bridgewater

pertaining to the collection and disposal of garbage (which ordinances are set
forth in the Village Rules and Regulations) apply to Resident. Bridgewater Village
Residents are responsible to place garbage and trash containers at designated
areas for collection by the Town.

Programs. Social, educational, cultural, recreational, religious and wellness
programs are provided for those Village residents who wish to participate.
Tours and programs are available at commercially reasonable costs for those
residents who wish to participate. Residents are encouraged to participate in
the programming of activities. Volunteer opportunities are also available at
Bridgewater Retirement Community and in the community at large.

Taxes. Village shall pay all real estate taxes assessed against the Residence.
Resident shall pay all personal property taxes assessed against Resident'’s
personal property.

Parking. Resident parking shall be available.

Physician Services. Resident may use his or her own physician or a physician

affiliated with Bridgewater Retirement Community on a fee-for-service basis.

Priority Placement in Assisted Living and Nursing Households. This Agreement

does not entitle Resident to assisted living or health care services, but, in the
event Resident applies for admission, and is eligible for admission, to Assisted
Living, Memory Support, or Nursing Households at Bridgewater Retirement
Community, Resident’s application will have priority over non-residents. If
Resident transfers temporarily or permanently to Assisted Living, Memory
Support, or the Nursing Households at Bridgewater Retirement Community,
Resident will be charged on the basis of Bridgewater’s prevailing rates as are
then in effect during Resident’s stay in such location. The prevailing rates
include room and board, but do not include physician’s fees, therapeutic
services, drugs and medical supplies, or transportation. The effect of a

temporary transfer on this Agreement and the fees due hereunder is described
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in Section 7. The effect of a permanent transfer on this Agreement and the fees

due hereunder is described in Section 11(e).

7. Monthly Service Fee.

(a)

(b)

()

Billing. Village will present Resident with a detailed monthly statement that
reflects the Monthly Service Fee due, in advance, for the month; any credits; any
charges for additional services rendered during the preceding month; any other
amounts due to the Village; and payments received. Such monthly statement
shall be paid by the fifth day following Resident’s receipt thereof. For residences
completely renovated and ready for move-in on the date of contract signing, the
first Monthly Service Fee will be due on the first day of the month following
occupancy.

Adjustments to Published Monthly Service Fee. A current schedule of the

Monthly Service Fees pertaining to all residences in the Village and the
single/joint occupancy thereof is published in the Annual Disclosure Statement.
This schedule of Monthly Service Fees is subject to change upon 30 days’
advance written notice to Resident; provided, however, notice is not required in
the event of changes required by state or federal assistance programs. Changes
to the Monthly Service Fee are based upon a number of factors, including
without limitation, changes in the Consumer Price Index, changes in the
financial condition of Bridgewater Retirement Community, and government
regulations affecting Bridgewater Retirement Community. Adjustments to the
Monthly Service Fee are normally made on an annual basis.

Individual Adjustments to Monthly Service Fee. The Monthly Service Fee is

subject to individual adjustment for the following changes in circumstance: (i)
the transfer of Resident to another residence within the Village to which a
different Monthly Service Fee applies, or (ii) a change in the occupancy of such
Residence from single occupancy to joint occupancy, or vice versa. Unless
otherwise provided in this Agreement, such adjustments to the Monthly Service
Fee will be made in the month following such change in circumstance, in

accordance with the then current Monthly Service Fee schedule.
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(d) Transfers from Village. In the event Resident temporarily transfers to a hospital,

(e)

(f)

health care facility within Bridgewater Retirement Community, or elsewhere,
Resident shall nevertheless remain responsible to pay the Monthly Service Fee,
with no adjustments or prorations on account of such temporary transfer;
provided, however, daily meal credits will be effective immediately upon a
transfer to Assisted Living or a Nursing Household within Bridgewater
Retirement Community, whether the transfer is temporary or permanent.

Payment of Monthly Service Fee Following Termination. Resident shall remain

responsible for the payment of the Monthly Service Fee after termination of this
Agreement until Resident’s Vacation of Residence. The Monthly Service Fee will
be charged for the last month of occupancy regardless of date of move out.
Residence must be left in broom-swept condition upon move out. Labeled boxes
for Bridgewater Home Auxiliary ReRun Shoppe, Bridgewater Village Residents’
Association Village Barn, or other charity are permitted as long as the
organization has agreed to accept and pick up the donation in a timely manner.
Should unlabeled belongings remain in the residence, or should the designated
organization not arrange for pick-up of the donation in a timely manner, upon
Vacation they become the sole property of Bridgewater Village to dispose of as
it deems appropriate. Bridgewater Village reserves the right to charge
customary cleaning rates if residence is not left in broom- swept condition.

Inability to Pay Monthly Service Fee. In the event Resident is unable to pay the

Monthly Service Fee for financial reasons which Resident asserts are beyond his
or her control, Resident shall notify Village Administration within five days of his
or her receipt of the monthly statement described in Section 7 above, and the
following procedures will be observed. In the event the monthly statement has
not been paid within five days of its receipt by Resident, Village Administration
may undertake the following procedures on its own initiative.

(i) Village Administration shall promptly review with Resident all facts and

circumstances that Village Administration deems necessary or

appropriate to assess Resident’s ability to pay, including without

15



(i)

(iii)

limitation copies of such tax and financial records pertaining to Resident
as Village may reasonably request; whether Resident has made recent
gifts of cash or property which have impaired Resident’s ability to pay;
and Resident’s sources of income, whether through governmental
assistance, medical benefits, family support or otherwise. In the event
Village Administration determines, in its sole discretion, that Resident’s
nonpayment is unjustified, or if Resident does not fully cooperate with
such review, Village Administration may declare this Agreement in
default, and the termination procedures of Section 9 shall apply.

In the event Village Administration determines Resident’'s nonpayment is
justified, Village Administration will attempt to work out, in its sole
discretion, a modified payment plan that will allow Resident to remain a
resident of the Village. Such plan may require one or more of the
following actions, among others: Resident’s transfer to a less expensive
residence within the Village; a reduction, up to and including complete
elimination, of the Entrance Fee refund to which Resident would
otherwise be entitled under Section 10; a temporary or permanent
reduction in the Monthly Service Fee; Resident’s execution and delivery of
such instruments as necessary to evidence Resident’s indebtedness to
Village, together with any instruments which secure such indebtedness;
Resident’s written commitment not to make any future gifts of cash or
personal property; and Resident’s periodic delivery to Village of tax and
financial statements pertaining to Resident. Such modified payment plan
will be evidenced by an addendum attached to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Resident acknowledges that Section
7(f)(ii) above is qualified in all respects by the necessity of protecting the
sound financial condition of Village and of Bridgewater Retirement
Community and does not impair Village's right to terminate this
Agreement due to nonpayment of fees or as otherwise permitted herein.

While the Village attempts to provide charitable care to needy residents, it
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is not required to do so, and the Resident will be required to vacate the
Residence in the event the Village terminates this Agreement due to

nonpayment of fees or as otherwise permitted herein.

Resident Covenants. Resident shall observe the following covenants:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Payment and Performance. Until Vacation of the Residence, and thereafter for

so long as any payment or performance obligation with respect to this
Agreement remains outstanding, Resident shall pay when due all fees, expenses
and charges anticipated by this Agreement and shall observe the requirements
of this Agreement, including the Village Rules and Regulations.

Safe and Healthy Residency. Resident will reside in the Residence in a safe and

healthy way and live without endangering himself or herself or others.
Insurance. Until Vacation of the Residence, Resident shall maintain the following
insurance, at Resident’s own expense: (i) insurance on any motor vehicle owned
by Resident, to the extent required by the Commonwealth of Virginia; (ii)
casualty and theft insurance on Resident’s personal property; (iii)
comprehensive personal liability insurance; and (iv) health insurance acceptable
to Village. Resident shall submit proof of such insurance as Village may from
time to time request.

Benefits. Until Vacation of the Residence, and thereafter for so long as any
payment obligation with respect to this Agreement remains outstanding,
Resident agrees at any time and from time to time to take such action and
execute such forms as necessary or appropriate to secure the payment to the
Village, any hospital, skilled nursing facility, or other provider of services, or to
any physician, of any and all amounts payable for goods or services provided
Resident and for which benefits, such as health insurance, Medicare, or
supplemental insurance, are available, or may become available in the future.

Subordination. Resident acknowledges that all rights, privileges, and benefits

under this Agreement are subordinate to any mortgage, deed of trust or security
interest on or in any of the real or personal property of Bridgewater Retirement

Community, as the same may be modified or refinanced from time to time,
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(f)

(9)

subject to the agreement of the lienholder not to disturb the rights of Resident
so long as there exists no default under this Agreement. This clause shall be
self-operative and no further instrument of subordination shall be required in
order to effectuate it. In the event any proceedings are brought for foreclosure
of any mortgage, deed of trust or other encumbrance to which this Agreement is
subject and subordinate, Resident shall, upon request of the party succeeding to
the interest of Bridgewater Retirement Community as a result of such
proceedings, automatically attorn to and become the resident of such
successor in interest without change in the terms of this Agreement. Until
Vacation of the Residence, Resident agrees, upon request of Bridgewater
Retirement Community, to execute and deliver any document which is required
by Bridgewater Retirement Community or its lenders further to evidence or
effect such subordination.

Power of Attorney; Guardianship. Upon execution hereof, Resident shall supply

Village with a true and correct copy of a signed and notarized Power of Attorney
naming a third party of Resident’s choosing as attorney-in-fact to conduct
Resident’s business and financial transactions. Resident shall maintain a Power
of Attorney at all times until Vacation of the Residence, promptly delivering to
Village any subsequently executed Powers of Attorney. In the event
guardianship proceedings with respect to the Resident are initiated, whether by
Village or another party, due to the failure of Resident to maintain a current
Power of Attorney, or for any other reason, Resident will be responsible for all
costs incurred by Village, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, in connection
with such proceeding.

Indemnification. Resident shall indemnify and hold harmless the entities

comprising Bridgewater Retirement Community, together with their respective
agents, employees, officers and directors, from and against any and all
liabilities, losses, claims, demands, costs, expenses, fines and remediation
costs (including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses) and judgments of

any nature arising, or alleged to arise, from or in connection with the occupancy
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or use of the Residence or any property of Bridgewater Retirement Community
by Resident or any of Resident’s agents or invitees, excepting only such losses

caused by the sole negligence of the Indemnified Parties.

(h) Changes in Resident’s Circumstances. Until Vacation of the Residence, Resident
shall promptly disclose to Village Administration any material change in
Resident’s physical, financial or mental condition. Resident further agrees to
provide such tax and financial records as Village may reasonably and
periodically request in order to verify that Resident continues to possess the
financial resources necessary to fulfill the payment obligations anticipated by
this Agreement.

(i) Outside Contractors (including Caregivers). Any outside contractors hired by a
resident must provide a Certificate of Insurance to Vice President of
Independent Living prior to providing services.

Termination.

(a) Termination by Resident. Resident has a seven-day right to rescind this
Agreement as provided in Section 4. Thereafter, and until expiration of the due
date for paying the first Monthly Service Fee as provided in Section 7 above,
Resident may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Village. Following
expiration of the due date for paying the first Monthly Service Fee, Resident may
terminate this Agreement upon 30 days’ advance written notice to Village.

(b) Termination by Village. Village may terminate this Agreement for good cause, as

follows:

(i) At any time upon determination by Village Administration, in consultation
with such persons as Village Administration deems appropriate, such as
Resident’s physician, personal representative or family member, that
Resident presents a direct threat to the health and safety of himself or
herself or others, Resident’s tenancy in the Residence will result in
substantial property damage and no reasonable accommodation (which, if
made, would be paid for by Resident) will mitigate this direct threat, or

Resident no longer meets the requirements for independent living;
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()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Thirty days after Village's written notice to Resident of Resident’s
nonpayment of any fee due under this Agreement and of Village's intent to
terminate this Agreement due to nonpayment, provided payment is not
received within such 30-day period;

Thirty days after Village's written notice to Resident specifying Resident’'s
repeated conduct that has interfered with other residents’ quiet enjoyment
of any facility of Bridgewater Retirement Community, provided such
conduct is not corrected within 21 days of such notice or, if corrected,
thereafter recurs;

Thirty days after Village's written notice to Resident specifying Resident’'s
persistent refusal to comply with Village Rules and Regulations, provided
such conduct is not corrected within 21 days of such notice or, if corrected,
thereafter recurs;

Thirty days after Village's written notice to Resident specifying a material
misrepresentation made intentionally or recklessly by Resident in his or her
application for admission to Village, or related materials, regarding
information which, if accurately provided, would have resulted in either a
failure of Resident to qualify for admission or a material increase in the
fees required of Resident under this Agreement; or

Thirty days after Village's written notice to Resident specifying any other
material breach by Resident of the terms of this Agreement, provided such
breach is not corrected within 21 days of such notice or, if corrected,

thereafter recurs.

Automatic Termination. This Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the

occurrence of any of the following events:

()
(i)

The death of Resident;
The permanent transfer of Resident to a hospital or health care facility, or

within Bridgewater Retirement Community, or elsewhere; or
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(iii) The inability of Resident, due to documented illness, injury or incapacity
occurring after Admission but before the Occupancy Date, to become a
resident of Village.

(d) Vacation of Residence Following Termination. Resident shall have 30 days, or

such longer period as Village may permit, to Vacate the Residence following
termination of the Agreement; provided, however, that if the Agreement has
terminated by reason of Resident’s misconduct, safety concerns, or other
reasons which, in the discretion of the Village, warrant immediate vacation, the
Village may require the Resident to vacate the Residence concurrently with the
termination of the Agreement. In the event Resident does not vacate the
Residence within such period or at such time, the Village has the right to sell or
dispose of resident’s personal property. Bridgewater Retirement Community
will not be liable for the misdelivery of personal property or of the proceeds of
any sale thereof pursuant to this Section 9(d) unless due to the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of Bridgewater Retirement Community.
Residence must be left in broom-swept condition upon move out. Labeled boxes
for Bridgewater Home Auxiliary ReRun Shoppe, Bridgewater Village Residents
Association Village Barn or other charity are permitted as long as the
organization has agreed to accept and pick up the donation in a timely manner.
Should unlabeled belongings remain in the residence, or should the designated
organization not arrange for pick-up of the donation in a timely manner, upon
Vacation they become the sold property of Bridgewater Village to dispose of as
it deems appropriate. Bridgewater Village reserves the right to charge
customary cleaning rates if residence is not left in broom-swept condition.

(e) Effect of Termination in Case of Joint Residents. Except as otherwise provided

for rescission in Section 4, in the event this Agreement has been entered into by
more than one Resident, then, notwithstanding anything to the contrary

contained herein, the termination of this Agreement under Sections 9(a), 9(b) or
9(c) above with respect to one Resident shall not terminate this Agreement with

respect to the remaining Resident(s) unless such termination is expressly made
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applicable to such Resident(s). Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, which
agreement shall be evidenced by an addendum to be attached to this
Agreement, upon termination of this Agreement with respect to one Resident, all
rights hereunder shall vest in, and all obligations hereunder (including those of
the Resident with respect to whom the Agreement has been terminated) shall be
assumed by, the remaining Resident(s); provided, however, that (i) any Entrance

Fee refund payable on the termination of this Agreement with respect to the last

joint Resident shall be payable as provided in Section 11(e) and, (i) and (ii) in the
event Bridgewater Home, Inc. exercises its right to transfer the Entrance Fee

refund for the account of the transferring Resident as provided in Section 11(e),

any remaining refund shall be paid as provided in Section 11(e).

10.  Entrance Fee Options.

Option One: 7-Year Declining Refund. In calculating this refund, an amount equal
to the Entrance Fee specified in Section 3(a), as amended by any addendum hereto, (“Base
Amount”) is depreciated at the rate of twenty percent (20%) for the first year of occupancy
and fifteen percent (15%) in years two and three of occupancy and ten percent (10%) per

year thereafter. This methodology is reflected on the following chart:

Day/Month After Occupancy Percent Depreciation Applied to Base
Amount
Day 1 — 365 20%
12 months & 1 day - 24 months 15%
25 months — 36 months 15%
37 months — 48 months 10%
49 months — 60 months 10%
61 months — 72 months 10%
73 months — 84 months 10%
85 months or more 10%
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Option Two: No-Less-Than 50% Refund. In calculating this refund, an amount
equal to the Entrance Fee specified in Section 3(a), as amended by any addendum hereto,
(“Base Amount”) is depreciated at the rate of twenty percent (20%) for the first year of
occupancy and fifteen percent (15%) in years two and three of occupancy. This

methodology is reflected on the following chart:

Day/Month After Occupancy Percent Depreciation Applied to Base
Amount
Day 1 — 365 20%
12 months & 1 day - 24 months 15%
25 months — 36 months 15%

Option Three: 100% Refund. An amount equal to the Entrance Fee specified in

Section 3(a) as amended by any addendum hereto.

11.  Refund of Entrance Fees. To the extent the entrance fee described in section 10 has
actually been paid, refunds with respect thereto shall be paid to Resident upon the
termination of this Agreement (or, in the case of subsequently married residents as
described in Section 2(d)(i), upon termination of both Residency Agreements) as
follows:

(@)  Rescission and Non-occupancy. In the event (i) Resident rescinds this

Agreement as provided in Section 4, (ii) Resident dies prior to the Occupancy
Date, or (iii) this Agreement is terminated by virtue of Section 9(c)(iii) (illness
precluding occupancy), then all payments made by Resident shall be refunded
within 30 days of such rescission or termination, without interest, except for
the Application Fee and any offset for expenses actually incurred by Village at
Resident'’s specific request for custom improvements to Residence.

(b)  Termination After the Occupancy Date. If this Agreement is terminated after

the Occupancy Date as described in Section 1, then the refund shall be paid,
without interest, less any offset for (i) fees and charges then due with respect
to Residence, and (ii) any amounts charged against the Entrance Fee refund as

provided in this Agreement, including any addendum hereto.
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(c) Refund Payment Due Date. Refund payments under Options One, Two, or

Three shall be paid on the earlier of (i) six months following Vacation by the
Resident (or last Resident, in the case of joint Residents), or (ii) 60 days
following the date on which a Residency Agreement with respect to a new
resident is fully executed for the Residence and occupancy has been granted
to the new resident.

(d)  Refundin the Event of Joint Residents. In the event this Agreement has been

entered into by more than one Resident, any refund payment under Section 10
above shall be paid in equal interests to all Residents surviving at the time of
payment, or, if only one Resident survives at the time of payment, all to such
surviving Resident. For the sake of clarity, a Resident who has ceased to
reside at Bridgewater Retirement Community prior to the refund being paid
shall not, as a result thereof, forfeit his or her right to the refund.

(e)  Refundin the Event of Certain Transfers.

(i) Inthe event this Agreement is terminated as a result of Resident’s
permanent transfer to an Assisted Living, Memory Support, or Nursing
Household within Bridgewater Retirement Community, then
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Entrance
Fee refund to which Resident is entitled pursuant to this Agreement may,
at the discretion of Bridgewater Home, Inc., be transferred to an interest-
bearing account with Bridgewater Home, Inc., which Bridgewater Home,
Inc. has the right to draw against for payment of Resident’s account in
such facility.

(i) If, upon a Resident’s (“first Resident”) permanent transfer to Assisted
Living, Memory Support, or Nursing Household at Bridgewater Retirement
Community, this Agreement continues with respect to other Resident(s)
who are party hereto as provided in Section 9(e), then, upon termination of
this Agreement with respect to all remaining Resident(s), if any Resident is
in Assisted Living, Memory Support, or a Nursing Household at

Bridgewater Retirement Community, then, notwithstanding anything to the
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contrary contained herein, the Entrance Fee refund due under this
Agreement may, at the discretion of Bridgewater Home, Inc., be
transferred to an interest-bearing account with Bridgewater Home, Inc.,
which Bridgewater Home, Inc. has the right to draw against for payment of
Resident’s account in such level of living. Upon such Resident’s death or
permanent transfer outside of Bridgewater Retirement Community, any
Entrance Fee refund, as reduced as provided herein, shall be paid in equal
interests to all surviving Residents, or, if only one Resident survives, all to

such surviving Resident.

12.  Miscellaneous.

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Residents’ Association. Village residents have the right to participate in the

Resident’s Association.

Notices. Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement will be given
and served either by personal delivery to the party to whom it is directed, or by
registered or certified mail, postage and charges prepaid. If sent to Village, any
notice must be addressed to Village Administration, 302 N. Second Street,
Bridgewater, Virginia 22812, and, if sent to Resident, any notice must be
addressed to Residence. Any notice is deemed given on the date on which it is
personally delivered, or, if mailed, the date it is deposited in a regularly
maintained receptacle for the deposit of United States mail, addressed and sent
as required in this Section 12(b).

Non-Waiver. Village's failure to seek redress for violation of or to insist upon the
strict performance of any provision of this Agreement will not prevent a
subsequent act, which would have originally constituted a violation, from having
the effect of an original violation.

Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid,
illegal, or unenforceable for any reason and in any respect, such invalidity,
illegality or unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of this
Agreement which shall be in full force and effect, enforceable in accordance

with its terms.
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(e) Dispute Resolution.

()

(i)

Resident may file a complaint or disclose any concern, in writing, at any
time, to Village Administration. Village Administration will use its best
efforts to respond, in writing, to such complaint within 15 days of its
receipt thereof. If Resident is unsatisfied with the response of Village
Administration, Resident may appeal the matter to the President of
Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. The President, likewise, will use his best
efforts to respond, in writing, to such appeal within 15 days of his receipt
thereof. If Resident is unsatisfied with the response of the President,
Resident may appeal the matter to the Executive Committee of the Board
of Directors of Bridgewater Healthcare, Inc.

In the event of a conflict regarding this Agreement, or any other matter that
is not resolved through the complaint procedures of Section 12(e)(i), the
parties agree to resolve such conflicts through arbitration conducted in
accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association then in
effect, except as may be modified as follows. Each party to the conflict
shall select an independent professional and the two such arbitrators shall
select a third arbitrator. A decision by a majority of the arbitrators shall be
binding on all parties. The arbitrator(s) shall issue a written award which
shall contain, at a minimum, the names of the parties, a summary of the
issues in controversy, findings of fact, a description of the award, and
which award may contain an allocation of arbitration costs between the
parties. The arbitrator(s) will have no authority to award punitive or other
damages not measured by the prevailing party's actual damages, except as
may be required by statute. Judgment upon the award rendered by the
arbitrator(s) may be entered by any court having jurisdiction. The parties
agree that any arbitration proceedings between them and the outcome of
such proceedings shall be kept strictly confidential; provided, however, that

the parties may disclose such information to the extent required by law and
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(f)

(9)

(h)

()

()

to their respective agents and professional advisors who have a legitimate
need to know such information.

Governing Law. This Agreement is to be construed according to the laws of the

Commonwealth of Virginia without reference to its choice of law provisions.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts
with the same effect as if all parties hereto had all signed the same document.
All counterparts will be construed together and will constitute one agreement.

Successors and Assigns; Binding Effect. Resident may not assign this

Agreement, but any obligation of the Village to pay the Resident will survive the
death of the Resident and such payment will be made to the personal
representative of the Resident’s estate or according to an unambiguous “Pay on
Death” designation form properly completed and on file with the Village. Village
may assign this Agreement without the consent of Resident; provided, however,
Village shall remain responsible for the refund obligations described in Section
10. The terms of this Agreement are binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties, with respect to the Village, its successors and assigns, and, with respect
to the Resident, the Resident’s heirs, executors, administrators and personal
representatives.

Amendments. This Agreement may be amended in any written document signed
by the parties hereto. All addenda referenced by this Agreement to be attached
hereto shall be signed by the parties.

Interpretation. The divisions of this Agreement into sections and the use of

captions and headings in connection therewith are solely for convenience and
shall have no legal effect in construing the provisions of this Agreement. When
the context in which the words are used in this Agreement that such is the
intent, words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa, and words of
the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter genders and vice

versa.
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(k) Survival. All the terms, conditions, covenants, representations and warranties,
including without limitation Resident’s obligation to indemnify Bridgewater
Retirement Community, contained in this Agreement shall survive the

termination of this Agreement, except to the extent otherwise provided herein.

[Signatures appear on the following page.]
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WITNESS the following signatures and seals.

BRIDGEWATER VILLAGE, INC.

- By
Date Its
RESIDENT(S)
_ Name:
Date
_ Name:
Date

662686.D0C
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Bridgewater Village, Inc.

ENTRANCE AND MONTHLY FEE SCHEDULE

Contract Option #1 (7-year refund option)

Description of Residence

Entrance Fee

Monthly Service Fee
One Person

Monthly Service Fee
Two Persons

Village Courts

§75,606 — $159,074

$1,124 - §1,402

$1,458 - $1,736

Cottages

Multiplexes

$108,450 - $173,869

$1,234 - $1,452

$1,568 - $1,786

Duplex Cottages

$123,424 - $250,218

$1,283 - $1,706

$1,617 - $2,040

Duplex Cottages with Garage

$246,673 - $442,277

$1,694 - $2,346

$2,028 - $2,680

Single Family Cottage

§201,771 - $635,522

$1,545 - $2,990

$1,879 — $3,324

Apartments

Hearthstone Manor

$118,394 - $168,472

$1,349 - $1,516

$1,683 — $1,850

Maple Terrace

$194,552 - $299,384

$2,917 — $3,266

$3,403 - $3,752

Grove

$252,821 - $396,762

$3,111 - $3,591

$3,597 - $4,077

Application Fee: $150 for one person; $200 for two persons.

Meal Plan: $145/person for all Village homes; $250/person in the Grove & Maple Terrace.
Second Person Fee: $189/person for all Village homes; $487/person in the Grove & Maple Terrace.

Pricing effective October 1, 2023




Bridgewater Village, Inc.

ENTRANCE AND MONTHLY FEE SCHEDULE

Contract Option #2 (50% refund option)

Description of Residence

Entrance Fee

Monthly Service Fee
One Person

Monthly Service Fee
Two Persons

Village Courts

$102,068 - $214,750

$1,124 - §1,402

$1458 - §1,736

Cottages

Multiplexes

$146,408 - $234,723

$1,234 - $1,452

$1,568 - $1,786

Duplex Cottages

$166,622 - $337,794

$1,283 - $1,706

$1,617 - $2,040

Duplex Cottages with Garage

$333,009 - $597,074

$1,694 - $2,346

$2,028 - $2,680

Single Family Cottage

§272,391 - $857,955

$1,545 - $2,990

$1,879 — $3,324

Apartments

Hearthstone Manor

$159,832 - $227,437

$1,349 - $1,516

$1,683 — $1,850

Maple Terrace

$262,645 — $404,168

$2,917 — $3,266

$3,403 - $3,752

Grove

$341,308 - $535,629

$3,111 - $3,591

$3,597 - $4,077

Application Fee: $150 for one person; $200 for two persons.

Meal Plan: $145/person for all Village homes; $250/person in the Grove & Maple Terrace.
Second Person Fee: $189/person for all Village homes; $487/person in the Grove & Maple Terrace.

Pricing effective October 1, 2023




Bridgewater Village, Inc.

ENTRANCE AND MONTHLY FEE SCHEDULE

Contract Option #3 (100% refund option)

Description of Residence

Entrance Fee

Monthly Service Fee
One Person

Monthly Service Fee
Two Persons

Village Courts

$226,818 - §477,222

$1,124 - §1,402

$1,458 - $1,736

Cottages

Multiplexes

$325,350 - $521,607

$1,234 - $1,452

$1,568 - $1,786

Duplex Cottages

$§370,272 - $750,654

$1,283 - $1,706

$1,617 - $2,040

Duplex Cottages with Garage

§740,019 - $1,326,831

$1,694 - $2,346

$2,028 - $2,680

Single Family Cottage

$605,313 - $1,906,566

$1,545 - $2,990

$1,879 — $3,324

Apartments

Hearthstone Manor

$355,182 - $505,416

$1,349 - $1,516

$1,683 — $1,850

Maple Terrace

$583,656 — $898,152

$2,917 — $3,266

$3,403 - $3,752

Grove

§758,463 - $1,190,286

$3,111 - $3,591

$3,597 - $4,077

Application Fee: $150 for one person; $200 for two persons.
Meal Plan: $145/person for all Village homes; $250/person in the Grove & Maple Terrace.
Second Person Fee: $189/person for all Village homes; $487/person in the Grove & Maple Terrace.

Pricing effective October 1, 2023




ESCROW AGREEMENT
THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this day of )

20 , by and between BRIDGEWATER VILLAGE, INC., a Virginia non-profit corporation
(the “Provider”) and Truist Bank (“Bank”).

BACKGROUND

A Provider is required by Virginia’s “Continuing Care Provider Registration
and Disclosure Act,” Chapter 49 of Title 38.2 of the Code of Virginia, (the “Act”) to
establish an entrance fee escrow account with a bank, trust company or other escrow
agent approved by Virginia's State Corporation Commission.

B. Provider wishes to have Bank serve as escrow agent of its entrance fee
escrow account and Bank is willing to serve as escrow agent.

TERMS

In consideration of the terms and conditions set for in this Agreement, the parties
agree asfollows:

1. Bank will receive into a separate account (the “Entrance Fee Escrow
Account”), all entrance fees or portions thereof in excess of $1,000.00 per resident
received by the Provider prior to the date the resident is permitted to occupy a unit in the
Provider’s facility and deposited to the Entrance Fee Escrow Account by Provider. Bank
will invest the funds in the Entrance Fee Escrow Account in accordance with the
instructions of the Provider and subject to the limitations on investments imposed by
the Act.

2. Physical division of the funds held in the Entrance Fee Escrow Account
shall not be necessary, but Bank shall maintain separate account records with respect

to each resident for whom Provider has deposited funds to be escrowed.



3. Bank will release to Provider those funds in the Entrance Fee Escrow
Account which constitute the principal of a resident’'s account upon Provider's
certification, in writing, that a unit in the Provider’s facility has been occupied by such
resident or made available for immediate occupancy by the resident. Bank will release
to resident (giving Bank the name, address and social security number of such resident)
those funds in the Entrance Fee Escrow Account which constitute the principal of such
resident’s account upon Provider’s written certification that resident is entitled to such
funds as provided by resident’'s Residency Agreement with Provider, the Act, or both.

4. Interest or other income earned on the Entrance Fee Escrow Account shall
be the exclusive property of Provider and shall be paid to Provider upon its request.

5. Either Bank or Provider may terminate this Agreement upon 60 days'’
advance written notice to the other. Upon termination, the Bank shall release all
remaining funds to Provider.

6. This Agreement and the Entrance Fee Escrow Account shall be governed
by the Act. Bank, as escrow agent, shall serve as fiduciary in carrying out its obligations
under this Escrow Agreement.

7. This Agreement and the Entrance Fee Escrow Account shall automatically
terminate when Provider is no longer required to maintain an entrance fee escrow
account under the Act. At that time, Bank shall release all remaining funds to Provider.

8. For its services hereunder, Bank shall receive a fee according to its
customary charges, which fee may be adjusted by the Bank upon 60 days’ advance

written notice to Provider.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement the
day and year first above written.

BRIDGEWATER VILLAGE, INC

By:

James A. Weaver, Vice President of Finance

TRUIST BANK

By:

Its:

591166
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independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Director's
Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. and Affiliates
d/bfa Bridgewater Retirement Community

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bridgewater
HealthCare, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Bridgewater Retirement Community (a nonprofit organization),
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of September 30, 2023 and 2022,
and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a
Bridgewater Retirement Community as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of their
operations, the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. QOur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are required to be independent of Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Bridgewater
Retirement Community and o meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Correction of Error

As discussed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, an error related to the
classification of net assets previously reported as of September 30, 2021 was discovered by
management of Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Bridgewater Retirement Commumnity
during the current year. Accordingly, amounts reported for beginning net assets without donor
restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions as of September 30, 2021 have been restated in the
2022 financial statements now presented and an adjustment has been made to net assets as of
September 30, 2022, to correct the error. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are condilions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. and Affiliates d/bfa Bridgewater Retirement Community's ahility to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements
are available to be issued.

1801 Porter Street, Suite 500 3877 Fairfax Ridge Road, Suite 200N
Raltimore, MD 21230 Fairfax, VA 22030
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Independent Auditor’'s Report {Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whoie are free from materiat misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absalute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihocd
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user

based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professicnal skepticism throughout the
audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financiai
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those rigsks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disciosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant {o the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. and
Affitiates d/bfa Bridgewater Retirement Community's internal control.  Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. and
Affiliates d/bfa Bridgewater Retirement Community’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable pericd of time,

control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Gotooe, Mondeleokn s -floarciatic, £ 4.

Baltimore, Maryland
January 23, 2024




BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts

Contributions receivable
Investments, current

Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Accrued interest receivable
Total Current Assets

Property, net of accumulated depreciation

Other Assets

Contributions receivable, net

Deposits

Investments, limited as to use
Investments, long-term

Land held for sale

Interest rate swap agreements

Other assets

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

2022

2023 (Restated)
$ 1,866,943 $ 4,157,661
2,935,937 2,734,901
50,000 -0-
24,917,199 23,020,307
211,392 184,164
243,249 209,904
43,530 22,620
30,268,250 30,329,557
89,257,371 89,027,780
200,000 331,000
274,981 274,981
3,049,170 2,738,059
7,858,282 7,630,134
-0- 1,818,282
2,707,738 2,057,121
12,762 12,762
14,102,933 14,862,339

$ 133,628,554

$ 134,219,676




2022

2023 (Restated)
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,337,886 $ 1,744,023
Accrued expenses 142,402 144,780
Accrued compensation costs 1,112,009 1,082,040
Contract liabilities 23,536 51,840
Line of credit 1,954,664 1,918,997
Current portion of split-interest obligations 45,879 11,210
Current maturities of long-term debt 1,518,549 4,770,547
Current portion of deferred entrance fees 2,654,546 2,512,888
Total Current Liabilities 8,789,471 12,236,325
Non-Current Liabilities
Split-interest obligations, net of current portion 564,851 638,632
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 39,606,754 39,869,548
Deferred entrance fees, net of current portion 11,701,835 10,906,832
Refundable entrance fees 19,501,702 19,738,921
Total Non-Current Liabilities 71,375,142 71,153,933
Total Liabilities 80,164,613 83,390,258
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 7, 8, 12, 13, 15 and 17)
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions
Undesignated 27,331,459 28,013,169
Board designated funds 11,768,651 8,813,871
Total Without Donor Restrictions 39,100,110 36,827,040
With donor restrictions 14,363,831 14,602,378
Total Net Assets 53,463,941 50,829,418
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 133,628,554 $ 134,219,676

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

Support and Revenue
Health care services:
Nursing care
Less contractual losses with Medicare
Less contractual losses with Medicaid

Assisted living
Less contractual losses with Social Services
Less community service losses

Resident services:
Rental income
Service fees
Amortization of entrance fees
Gain on unit turnover

Pharmaceutical sales

Contributions

Fee for service revenue

Government grants - provider relief funds
Net investment return

Miscellaneous revenue

Net assets released from restrictions
Satisfaction of program restrictions
Satisfaction of time restrictions
Transfer of program restrictions

Total Support and Revenue

Operating Expenses
Program services
Supporting services:

Management and general
Fundraising
Total Expenses

Income from Operations

Other Income (Expense)
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Income from investment in partnership
Change in annuity value of split-interest obligations
Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets
Loss on disposal of land held for sale
Loss on impairment
Change in value of interest rate swap agreements
Total Other Income (Expense)

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets at Beginning of Year, as originally reported
Prior Period Adjustment (See Note 18)

Net Assefs at Beginning of Year, as restated

Net Assets at End of Year

2023
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
$ 20,189,682 -0- 20,189,682
{1,767,540) -0- (1,767,540)
{1,352,1686) -0- {1,352,1686)
17,069,976 -0- 47,069 976
8,866,657 -0- 8,866,657
(394,871) -0- (394,871)
(816,308) -0~ (816,308)
7,655,478 -0- 7,655,478
209,083 -0- 209,083
5,938,497 -0- 5,938,497
2,684,079 -0- 2,684,079
1,066,820 -0- 1,066,820
9,898,479 -0- 9,898,479
308,131 -0- 308,131
486,395 707,712 1,194,107
30,783 -0- 39,783
-0- -0- -0-
637,849 885,529 1,523,378
34,537 () 34,537
1,506,695 1,593,241 3,099,936
935,752 (935,752) -0-
127,500 (127,500) -0-
347,618 (347,618) -0-
37,541,498 182,371 37,723,869
31,663,472 (e 31,663,472
4,452,410 -0- 4,452,410
116,310 -0- 116,310
36,232,192 -0- 36,232,192
4,309,306 182,371 1,491,677
1,508,417 179,082 1,687,499
09,594 -0- 99,594
(25,964) -0- (25,964)
6,700 w0~ 6,700
(1,264,035) -0- (1,264,035)
(11,565) -0- (11,5685)
650,617 -0- 650,617
963,764 179,082 1,142,846
2,273,070 361,453 2,634,523
36,827,040 14,002,378 50,829,418
-0- -0- -0-
36,827,040 14,002,378 50,829,418
39,100,110 14,363,831 $ 53463941




2022

(Restated)
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
$ 18,027,675 $ -0- $ 18,027,675
(1,484,281) -0- (1,484,261)
{1,758,905) -0)- {1,758,905)
14,784,509 -0- 14,784,509
7,345,650 -0~ 7,345,650
(369,934) -0- (369,934)
(742,572) -0- (742,572)
6,233,144 -0~ 6,233,144
204,783 -0 204,783
5,335,381 -0~ 5,335,381
2,550,466 -0- 2,550,466
773,431 -0- 773,431
8,864,061 -0- 8,864,061
298,729 -0- 298,729
2,477,669 1,137,372 3,615,041
69,386 -0- 69,396
57,328 -0- 57,328
890,056 415,699 4,305,755
348,651 -0- 348,651
4,141,829 1,553,071 5,694,900
1,013,586 (1,013,5886) -0-
131,500 (131,500) -0-
-0~ -0- ()
35,168,629 407,885 35,676,614
28,888,957 -0- 28,888,957
4,664,996 -0- 4,664,996
167,860 «(0- 167,860
33,721,813 ~0- 33,721,813
1,446,816 407 985 1,854,801
(4,513,944) (1,772,577) (6,286,521)
259,323 -0- 259,323
(20,797) -0- (20,797)
(38,554) -0- (38,554)
0~ 0~ -0-
(11,565} ~0- (11,565)
5,237 657 -0 5,237,657
912,120 (1,772,577) {860,457)
2,358,936 (1,364,592) 904,344
33,019,708 16,815,365 49,835,074
1,448,395 (1,448,395) -0-
34,468,104 15,366,970 49,835,074
$ 36,827,040 $ 14,002,378 $ 50829418

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses
Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

Personnel expenses:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Total personnel expenses

Depreciation

Food

Interest

Utilities

Supplies

Insurance

Taxes and licenses
Technology service fees
Purchased repairs
Medical supplies
Professional fees
Management fees

Cost of prescriptions sold
Therapies, lab and pharmacy
Renovations

Support services

Refuse disposal
Telephone

Resident activities
Printing and postage
Employee and public relations
Marketing

Professional development
Provision for bad debts
Repairs and maintenance
Grant related expenses
Dues and subscriptions
Transportation

Medical director
Equipment rentals
Long-range planning
Bank and credit card fees
Equipment replacement
Campaign expenses
Miscellaneous

Total Expenses

2023
Management
Program and General Fundraising Total
15158144 $ 2,139,202 $ 59,280 $ 17,356,626
1,079,074 156,875 4,077 1,240,026
1,933,321 304,309 14,241 2,251,871
18,170,539 2,600,386 77,598 20,848,523
4,281,875 49,923 112 4,331,910
1,551,390 -0- -0- 1,551,390
1,493,639 38,233 0 1,531,872
1,021,206 -0- -0- 1,021,206
886,751 87,122 506 974,379
214,943 498,734 2,096 715,773
578,605 58,078 -0- 636,683
64,115 547,261 717 612,083
584,643 6,542 -0- 591,185
449,961 -0- -0- 449 961
243,604 109,835 2,330 355,769
286,776 -0- -0- 286,776
284,594 -0- -0- 284,594
264,475 -0- -0- 264,475
233,596 -0- -0- 233,596
229,633 -0- -0- 229,633
174,781 -0- -0- 174,781
22,234 132,407 417 155,058
123,743 -0- 11,269 135,012
95,688 16,723 6,285 118,696
30,353 79,721 7,491 117,565
115,848 1,602 -0- 117,450
51,347 26,575 1,869 79,791
-0- 70,599 0 70,599
49,021 1,450 1,058 51,529
-0- 44,756 -0- 44,756
13,740 25,563 1,477 40,780
27,370 10,989 -0~ 38,359
36,000 -0- -0- 36,000
26,171 -0- -0- 26,171
4,717 14,978 2,621 22,316
2,470 198,460 248 22178
18,435 -0- -0- 18,435
215 -0- 216 431
30,994 11,473 -0- 42,467
31663472 & 4452410 $ 116,310 $ 36,232,192




2022

(Restated)
Management
Program and General Fundraising Total

$ 13318154 % 2001414 $ 54471 § 15,374,039

989,198 139,170 3,747 1,432,115
1,709,158 288,823 14,150 2,012,131
16,016,510 2,429,407 72,368 18,518,285
4,126,016 50,402 125 4,176,543
1,342,759 -0- -0- 1,342,759
1,311,371 38,233 -0- 1,349,604
904,332 -0- -0- 904,332
823,402 80,202 972 904,576
205,060 501,082 2,092 708,214
543,379 56,593 -0- 599,972
53,879 507,372 2,584 563,835
675,035 3,988 -0- 679,023
489,650 -0- -0- 489,650
239,570 127,484 2,686 369,740
263,582 -0- -0- 263,582
272,168 -0- -0- 272,168
315,547 -0- -0- 315,547
230,624 -0- -0- 239,624
152,222 -0- -0- 162,222
155,834 -0- 0- 155,834
31,497 127,505 363 159,365
164,847 0- 12,984 177,831
88,113 21,110 6,487 115,710
31,401 64,612 6,729 102,742
141,581 3,000 -0- 144,581
42,517 20,878 938 64,333
-0- 381,702 -0- 381,702
46,156 815 679 47,650
-0- 69,396 -0- 69,396
19,325 21,161 1,258 41,744
33,252 10,732 115 44,099
35,250 -0- -0- 35,250
28,852 -0- -0- 28,852
302 22,389 168 22,859
4,533 18,442 219 23,194
20,723 -0- -0- 20,723
57,092 -0- 57,093 114,185
13,576 108,511 -0- 122,087

$ 28888957 § 486499 § 167,860 $ 33,721,813

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activilies:
Provision for bad debts
Realized gains on investments
Unrealized losses (gains) on investments
Income from investment in partnership
Depreciation
Loss (gain) on disposal of fixed assets
Loss on disposal of land held for sale
Change in value of interest rate swap agreements
Change in annuity value of split-interest obligations
Non-cash interest expense
Amortization of entrance fees
Gain on unit turnover
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued compensation costs
Contract liabilities
Deferred revenue
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sales of investments

Bistributions from partnership

Purchases of property

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Net proceeds from disposal of land held for sale
Net Cash Used in investing Aclivities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net borrowings on line of credit
Proceeds from new annuities, net of contribution
Payments under split-interest obligations
Proceeds from long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Refundabte entrance fees received
Payments of refundable entrance fees
Net Cash Provided by Financing Aclivities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents- Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

2022
2023 (Restated)
$ 2,634,523 $ 994,344
70,598 381,702
{583,976) (202,513)
(1,687,498) 6,286,521
{99,594) (259,323)
4,331,910 4,176,543
(6,700) 38,554
1,264,035 -0-
{650,617) (5,237,657)
25,964 20,797
38,233 38,233
(2,684,079) (2,550,466)
(1,066,820) (773,431)
{271,635) (1,001,212)
81,000 (146,000)
{27,228) (13,387)
{33,345) 10,077
{20,910) (1,764)
{84,483) 542,000
(2,378) (182,257)
29,969 2,088
{28,304) 51,840
-0~ (57,328)
1,228,665 2,117,361
(7,331,843) (10,520,787)
7,021,870 8,302,284
244 891 335,987
(4,883,155) (4,516,021)
6,700 11,098
554,247 -0-
(4,387,290) (6,387,439)
35,667 246,611
34171 -0
(99,247) (107,165)
1,149,933 2,143,732
{4,702,958) (1,5632,062)
5,093,547 5,833,813
{643,206) (686,291)
867,907 5,898,638
{2,290,718) 1,628,560
4,157,661 2,529,101
$ 1866943 $ 4157661




2022

2023 {Restated)
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
interest paid $ 1486,823 1,520,609
Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:
Purchases of property $ 4,561,501 3,892,621
Change in properiy-related accounts payable 321,654 623,400
Cash paid for purchases of property (inciuded in cash
flows from investing aclivities) $ 4883155 4,516,021
Gross proceeds from disposal of land held for sale $ 585,000 -0-
Less: settlement costs and taxes (30,753) -0-
Net proceeds from disposal of land held for sale
(included in cash flows from investing activities) $ 554,247 -0-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consaclidated financial statements.
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC., AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Bridgewater Home, Inc., Bridgewater
Village, Inc., Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. and Bridgewater HealthCare Foundation, Inc. (collectively
referred to as the Organization). The Organization operates a retirement community located in Bridgewater,
Virginia.

Bridgewater Home, Inc. (the Home) has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as a
not-for-profit, tax-exempt organization as defined by §501(c)}(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) that is
publicly supported and, therefore, is not a private foundation. The Home was incorporated under the laws
of the commonwealth of Virginia and provides care to residents in its 127-bed skilled healthcare center and
98-unit assisted living facility. The Home is committed to providing the highest possible quality care to
residents with a focus on innovation and compassion.

Bridgewater Viilage, [nc. (the Village) has been recegnized by the IRS as a not-for-profit, tax-exempt
organization as defined by §501(c)(3} of the IRC that is publicly supported and, therefore, is not a private
foundation. The Village was incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia and offers 269
independent living units. The Village provides an engaging and energized living environment for its
residents.

Bridgewater HeaithCare, Inc {HealthCare) has been recognized by the IRS as a not-for-profit, tax-
exempt organization as defined by §501(c)(3) of the IRC that is publicly supported and, therefore, is not a
private foundation. HealthCare was incorporated under the laws of the commonwealth of Virginia and
provides support services to the other affiliates.

Bridgewater HealthCare Foundaticn, Inc. (the Foundation) has been recognized by the IRS as a not-
for-profit, tax-exempt organization as defined by IRC §501(c)(3), that is publicly supported and, therefore, is
not a private foundation. The Foundation was incorporated under the laws of the commonwealth of Virginia
and provides fundraising, funds management and public relations services for the benefit of the other
affiliates. The Foundation has a wholly-owned subsidiary, BHFI, LLC, which was created for the purpose of
holding gifts of iand for the Foundation. For financial reporting purpose, land held by this subsidiary has
been included with the Foundation's assets.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Organization conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Following is a description of the most significant of those policies:

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. along with its affiliates, Bridgewater Home, Inc., Bridgewater
Village, Inc. and Bridgewater HealthCare Foundation, Inc. Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. is the
sole member of each of its affiliates and each of the entities is under common control through
management and components of the Boards of Directors, All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash_and Cash Equivalents: The Organization classifies all investments which are
readily convertible to cash and which have a maturity of three months or less when purchased
as cash equivalents. Cash and cash eguivalents held by investment custodians are not included
in cash and cash equivalents but rather are treated as investments.
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 1: Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Resident Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: Resident accounts
receivables arise from services rendered to residents which are billed either to the residents,
insurance companies or to government agencies and are carried at original invoice amount less
an estimate made for doubtful receivables. The Organization uses the allowance method for
estimating uncollectible accounts based upon a review of its outstanding receivables and its
historical collection experience with individual accounts and payor sources. Receivables are
written off by management when, in their determination, all collection efforts have been
exhausted. Recoveries of receivables praviously written off are recarded when received, The
allowance for doubtful accounts was $460,000 and $500,000 as of September 30, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

Contributions Receivable: Unconditional promises to give are recorded as contributions
receivable and recognized as revenue in the period received, A provision is made for
uncollectible contributions based on anticipated collection losses. Estimated losses are
generally determined from historical collection experience and a review of outstanding
contributions receivable. Contributions receivable are written off by management when, in its
determination, all appropriate collection efforts have been taken. Management has determined
that all contributions receivable at September 30, 2023 and 2022 are fully collectible and
therefore, has not recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts.

Investments: Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values
are reported at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial position. Investments
whose fair values are not readily determinable are recorded at cost. Fair value is defined as
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Realized gains and losses
on investments for the year are reported in the consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets as part of net investment return.

Land held for sale is carried at cost. The Organization’s ownership in a privately held
partnership is accounted for under the equity method.

Inventories: inventories, which consists primarily of pharmaceuticals held for resale and
consumable supplies, is stated at net realizable value, computed on the first-in, first-out basis,
or fair value.

Property and Depreciation: Property is recorded at cost or, if donated, at fair value at the
date of gift, less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are
charged to expense as incurred; expendituras for improvemeants and major repairs that malerially
extend the useful lives of assets are capitalized. The Organization capitalizes property
acquisitions in excess of $1,000 having an estimated useful life of three years or more.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-ine method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Land improvements 5 - 25 years
Buildings and improvements 5 - 40 years
Furniture and equipment 3 - 20 years
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 1: Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Interest Rate Swap Agreements: The Organization uses interest rate swap agreements
to manage risks related to interest rate fluctuations on its bonds payable. The interest rate
swap agreements have been designhated as cash flow hedges and are reported at fair value.
The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements is the estimated amount that the bank or
financial institution would receive or pay to terminate the swap agreements at the reporting
date, taking into account current interest rates and current credit worthiness of the swap counter
parties. The net amounts paid or received under the interest rate swap agreements are
recognized in the consolidated statements of functional expenses as interest expense.

Deferred Financing Costs: Deferred financing costs represent costs incurred to secure
bond financing (Note 8) which are being amortized over the life of the debt instrument, utilizing
the straightdine method, and charged to interest expense. Under Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), debt issuance costs related to the recognized debt liability are
required to be presented in the consolidated statements of financial position as a direct
reduction from the carrying amount of the debt liability. Deferred financing costs as of
September 30, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2023 2022
Deferred financing costs $ 458,792 $ 458,792
Less: Accumulated amortization 219,838 181,605

$ 238954 $ 277187

Net Assets: Net assets, revenue, support, gains and losses are classified based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions; Net assets available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor restrictions. The governing boards have
designated, from net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for a reserve fund
and a quasi-endowment fund.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions. Net assets subject to donor-imposed
restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those
that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other
donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that
resources be maintained in perpetuity.

Revenue Recognition: The Organization generates contract revenue primarily by
providing healthcare, assisted living care and independent living services to residents within its
facility. It also generates contract revenue from service fees and pharmaceutical sales.
Revenue is recognized when control of the promised good or service is transferred to a resident,
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Organization expects to be entitied
from residents, third-party payors (including government programs and insurers) and others, in
exchange for those goods and services.
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 1: Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided.
The majority of the Organization's healthcare services represent a bundle of services that are
not capable of being distinct and as such, are treated as a single performance obligation
satisfied over time as services are rendered. The Organization also provides certain ancillary
services which are not included in the bundle of services, and as such, are treated as separate
performance obligations satisfied at a point in time, if and when those services are rendered.
Service fees encompass a variety of services provided fo residents and are treated as a single
performance ohligation satisfied at a pointin time. Pharmaceutical sales are treated as a single
performance obligation satisfied at a point in time as goods and services are rendered. The
Organization determines the transaction price for each type of service based on contractually
agreed-upon amounts or rates. Net resident health care service revenue is recorded at net
realizable amounts from residents and third-party payors for services rendered.

The Organization generates fee for service revenue primarily from a fee for service
contract wherein the Organization provides person-directed care to its residents within a
household environment. Compensation from this fee for service contract is earned on a
monthly basis and as services are provided to the residents. Performance obiigations are
determined based on agreed upon milestones within the confract. The Organization has
primarily one performance obligation which is satisfied over time related to this contract.

The Organization disaggregates revenue from contracts with residents by payor type
{(private or third-party reimbursement). The Organization notes {hat this disaggregation of
revenue into these categories achieves the disclosure objectives to depict how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash fiows are affected by economic factors.
The payment terms and conditions with the Organization’s revenue-generating contracts vary
by payor source (See Note 17). Approximately 34.3% and 42.8% of the Home’s nursing care
revenue for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, was derived under
third-party reimbursement programs.

The Organization disaggregates its revenue from contracts with residents and others as

follows:
2023 2022
Performance obligations satisfied over time
Resident health care service revenue $ 23,636,792 $ 20,128,609
Rental income 209,083 204,783
Amortization of entrance fees 2,684,079 2,550,466
Fee for service revenue 38,783 69,396
Performance ohligations satisfied at a point in time
Resident service revenue - ancillaries 1,088,662 889,044
Service fees 5,938,497 5,335,381
Pharmaceutical sales 308,131 208,729

$ 33,005,027  $ 29,476,408

The Organization recognizes revenue in the consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets and contract assets on the consolidated statements of financial position
only when services have been provided. Since the Organization has performed its obligation
under the confract, it has unconditional rights to the consideration recorded as contract assets
and therefore classifies those billed and unbilled confract assets as accounts receivable.
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 1: Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Payments that the Organization receives from residents and others in advance of
providing services represent contract liabilities. Such payments primarily relate to private pay
patients and residents, which are billed monthly in advance.

The Organization assesses an entrance fee for its independent living units. A portion of
the entrance fee paid by a resident upon entering into an independent living unit contract is
refundable upon the resident’s death or discharge based on the terms of the resident contract.
The refundable portion of the entrance fee is not affected by the amount assessed for future
entrance fees.

Refundable entrance fees are recorded in the accompanying consclidated statements of
financial position as non-current liabilities. The nonrefundable entrance fees are classified as
deferred entrance fees and are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over each
individual resident's life expectancy (based on actuarial assumptions of the life expectancy of
the residents in a continuing care retirement community).

The gross contractual liability for the refundable portion of entrance fees of the
independent living unit contracts as of September 30, 2023 and 2022 was $19,501,702 and
$19,738,921, respectively.

The Organization aiso receives revenue from contributions, grants, net investment
return, and other income. Net investment return and other income are recognized as revenue
in the period they are earned. Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are
recognized as revenue when received. Conditional promises to give and grants are not
recognized unti! the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met, are earned
and/or the service is provided.

Financial Assistance: The Home and Village provide care to certain residents without
charge or at amounts less than established rates, which is reflected as community service
losses on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. This
assistance is subsidized by grants from the Foundation which are not reflected on the
consclidated financial statements under the principles of consolidation. Total funds granted
by the Foundation were $816,308 and $742,572 for the years ended September 30, 2023
and 2022, respectively.

Contributions: Contributions received are recorded as without donor restriction or with
donor restriction depending on the existence andfor nature of any donor resftrictions.

Recognition of Donor Restrictions: All donor-restricted support is reported as an
increase in net assets with donor restrictions. Upon the expiration of a temporary restriction,
net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without restrictions in the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Advertising: Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred. The
Organization has no significant direct-response advertising. Advertising expense for the
years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 was $117,450 and $144,581, respectively, and
is included in marketing on the consclidated statements of functional expenses.
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 1: Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Functional Allocation of Expenses: The costs of providing various programs and other
support activities have been summarized on a functional basis and by natural classification
in the consolidated statements of functional expenses. Costs that can be identified with
specific programs or support services are allocated directly. Costs that cannot be specifically
identified with a particutar function and that benefit more than one functiona! category are
allocated based on estimates such as time and effort.

Income Taxes: All of the entities of the Organization are exempt from federal and state
income taxes under IRC §501(c){(3). Income which is not related to exempt purposes, less
applicable deductions, is subject to federal and state corporate income taxes. The
Organization had no unrelated business income for the years ended September 30, 2023 and
2022. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is reflected in these consolidated financial
statements. The Organization's respective federal exempt organization tax returns are
subject to examination by the IRS, generally for a period of three years after the returns are
filed.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standard: The Financial Accounting Standards Board
{(FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-02, Leases (ASC 842) which was effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. The distinction between finance leases
and operating leases is substantially similar to the distinction between capital leases and
operating leases in the previous guidance for leases. Lessor accounting is also largely
unchanged. For lessees, leases under both categories will be reported on the statement of
financial position as a depreciable right-of-use (ROU) asset and a related liability to make lease
payments. The asset and liability should be initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments, including any payments to be made in lease option periods only if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease or not to exercise an option to
terminate the lease. The ROU assets will be amorlized over the term of the iease and the lease
liability will be reduced by lease payments. The Organization adopted the new lease standard
effective as of October 1, 2022, The adoption of the new lease standard did not have a material
impact on the Organization's consolidated financial statements.

The Organization evaluates each contract and determines if an arrangement contains a
lease at the inception of a contract. Variable lease payment amounts that cannot be determined
at the commencement of the lease such as increases in lease payments based on changes in
index rates or usage are not included in the ROU assets or lease liabilities. These are expensed
as incurred. The QOrganization has elected not to record short-term leases with initial contract
terms of 12 months or less on the statements of financial position. The Organization accounts
for lease components and non-lease components as a single lease component. Short term
lease costs, including associated variable costs, for the year ended September 30, 2023 was
$26,171. Prior to the adoption of ASC 842, short term rental costs, including associated
variable costs, for the year ended September 30, 2022 was $28,852. Short term and variable
lease costs are included in equipment rentals on the consolidated schedule of functional
expenses.

As part of the adoption of the new lease standard, the Organization has elected the
following practical expedients; a) the Organization has not reevaluated expiring or existing
leases to determine lease classification, b) the Organization has not reevaluated whether
expired or existing contracts are or contain a lease and c) the Organization has not reassessed
initial direct costs for an existing lease.
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 1: Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Recently Issued Accounting Proncuncement: The FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial
Instruments - Credit Losses (ASC 326), which is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2022, This ASU requires organizations to measure all expected credit losses
for financial instruments held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current
conditions, and reasonable reportable forecasts. The new guidance affects trade receivables
and any other financial asset not excluded from the scope that have the contractual right to
receive cash. The Organization has elected not to early adopt this standard and will assess
the future impact of credit losses on the financial statements.

Reclassifications: Certain amounts previously reported in the 2022 consolidated
financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement presentation
for the year ended September 30, 2023,

Subsequent Events: In preparing these financial statements, the Organization has
evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through January 23,
2024, the date the financial statemenis were available to be issued. During the period
October 1, 2023 through January 23, 2024, the Organization did not have any material
recognizable subsequent events,

Note 2: Liquidity and Availability of Funds

A summary of the financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the consolidated statements of financial position date
comprise the following:

2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,866,943 $ 4,157,661
Accounts receivable, net 2,935,937 2,734,901
Contributions receivable 50,000 -0-
Investments, current 24,917,199 23,020,307
Investments, limited as to use 3,049,170 2,738,059
Less: Portion of invesiments subject to appropriation

in periods after September 30, 2023 and 2022 (3,498,211) (3,155,579)
Less: Net assets without donor restrictions,

board designated (11,768,651) (8,813,871)
Less; Net assets with donor restrictions {(2,213,339) (2,312,665)

Financial Assets Available for General Expenditure $ 15.339.048 $ 18,368,813

As part of the Organization’s liquidity management plans, the Organization invests cash in excess of
daily requirements in short-term investments. The Boards of the Organization have designated future cash
flow for specific purposes (see Note 10). Even though there is no intent of the Boards to remove these
designations, the Boards could make these amounts available, as necessary. The amounts designated and
not included within the liquidity caiculation as of September 30, 2023 and 2022 were $11,768,651 and
$8,813,871, respectively. Additionally, the Organization has available a line of credit in the amount of
$2,000,000, which it draw upon to help manage unanticipated liquidity needs (see Note 6).
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 3: Contributions Receivable

The Organization is the recipient of unconditional promises to give as of September 30, 2023 and
2022, which are generally expected {o be received as follows:

2023 2022
Receivables in less than one year $ 50,000 3 -0-
Receivables in one to five year 200,000 331,000
Total unconditional promises to give 250,000 331,000
Less: Long-term contributions receivable, net 200,000 331,000
Confributions receivable, current $ 50,000 $ -0-

Note 4: Investments

A summary of the investment portfolio, at fair value, is as follows at September 30, 2023 and 2622:

2023 2022

Common stocks $ 13,036,249 $ 13,350,219
Equity mutual funds 9,095,374 10,413,319
Fixed income mutual funds 4,165,185 2,784,800
Corporate bonds 2,644,144 3,108,803
Certificates of deposit 2,039,811 187,643
Money market funds 1,910,635 1,926,084
Government bonds 782,979 637,969
Municipal bonds 679,626 332,186
Interest in First Choice, LLC 453,079 598,376
Interest in MedRehab 75,000 -0-
Mortgage/asset backed securities 38,728 45 946
Preferred stock 3,841 3,175

Total investmenis 35,824,651 33,388,500
Investments classified as long-term:

Investments, limited as to use 3,049,170 2,738,059

Endowment funds 7,858,282 7,630,134

Investments, long-term portion 10,907,452 10,368,193

Investments, current portion $ 24917,199 $ 23020307
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 4: Investments (Continued)

The foliowing schedule summarizes the net investment return from all sources and their classification
in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended September 30,
2023

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
interest and dividends $ 696,982 3 394,071 $ 1,091,053
Net realized gains 30,067 553,908 583,975
Investment fees (89,200) (62,450} {151,650)
Net investment return 537,849 885,529 1,523,378
Net unrealized gains 1,508,417 179,082 1,687,499
Total investment income $ 2,146,266 $ 1064611 $ 3,210,877

The following schedule summarizes the net Investment return from all sources and their classification
in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended September 30,
2022:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
(Restated)

Interest and dividends $ 908,707 $ 377,394 $ 1,286,101
Net realized gains 83,241 119,273 202,514
Investment fees {101,892) (80,968) (182,860)
Net investment return 890,058 415,699 1,305,755
Net unrealized losses {4,513,944) (1,772,677) (6,286,521)

Total investment loss $ (3623888 $ (1,356,878) $ (4,980,766)

Included in total investment income listed under the column "Without Donor Restrictions” is investment
income {loss) earned on the Nursing Home Replacement Board Designated Fund in the amount of $311,111
and ($559,091) for the years ended Seplember 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 5: Property

Property at September 30, 2023 and 2022 consisted of the following:

2023 2022

Land $ 4,654,004 $ 4,654,094
Land improvements 3,468,467 3,438,418
Buildings and improvements 128,391,046 124,697,096
Furniture and equipment 7,075,608 6,106,548
Construction in progress 1,106,819 1,270,447

Total cost 144,696,034 140,166,604
Less: Accumulated depreciation 55,438,663 51,138,824

$ 89,257 371 $ 89,027,780

Note 6: Line of Credit

The Organization has a line of credit agreement with a bank in the amount of $2,000,000. The line
of credit bore interest at a variable interest rate based on the one-month London Interbank Offered Rate
{LIBOR) plus 1.30% (4.43% at September 30, 2022). During the year ended September 30, 2023, the line
of credit agreement was amended to change the interest rate to the Adjusted Term Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 1.39% (6.72% at September 30, 2023). The minimum interest rate charged on
the line of credit cannct decrease below a fixed minimum rate of 1.55%. Interest is payable monthly in
arrears. The line of credit expires June 15, 2024. The balance on the line of credit at September 30, 2023
and 2022 was $1,954,664 and $1,918,997, respectively.

Note 7: Split-Interest Obligations

The Organization is the beneficiary of several charitable gift annuity agreements which require lifetime
annuity payments to the respective donor. The agreements terminate upon the death of the donor, at which
time any remaining annuity value becomes available for use as designhated by the agreements.

Annuity payments of $99,247 and $107,165 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, were made to the donors during the year. Annuity obligations are determined based on required
periodic payments, using discount rates of 4% to 10% and life expectancy tables included in the IRC. Gains
recognized on the termination of annuity agreements totaled $27,404 and $75,158 for the years ended
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The present value of the split-interest obligations totaled $610,730 and $649,842 for the years ended
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 8: Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following as of September 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Mortgage note, collateralized by real estate with monthiy
payments of $883 with an interest rate of 5.25% and
due November 2025 3 21,149 $ 30,131

Mortgage note, collateralized by reat estate with monthly
payments of $1,293 with an interest rate of 4.74% and a
final balloon payment of $131,211 due on August 15, 2028 177,767 185,737

Series 2017A $26,000,000 Industrial Development Authority
Revenue Refunding Bonds, collateralized by substantially
all real estate and equipment, with monthly payments of
$77,083 at September 30, 2023 and a variable interest rate,
as defined in the bond documents (5.28% and 3.12% as
of September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and subject
to an interest rate swap agreement) with a final balloon
payment of $16,052,494 due on December 15, 2029 21,423,735 22,328,984

Series 2017B $18,000,000 Industrial Development Authority
Revenue Refunding Bonds, collateralized by substantially
all real estate and equipment, with monthly payments of
$40,833 at September 30, 2023 and a variable interest rate,
as defined in the bond documents {(5.28% and 3.12% as
of September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and subject
to an interest rate swap agreement) with a final balloon
payment of $12,730,004 due on December 15, 2029 15,862,497 16,341,252

Construction term loan commitment of $4,000,000,
collateralized by real estate with monthly payments of
$22,967 at September 30, 2023 with a variable interest
rate based on the Secured Overnight Financing Rate
(SOFR) plus 1.39% (6.72% and 3.91% as of September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively) but not fo decrease below a
fixed minimum rate of 1.55% and due on June 1, 2031 3,879,109 2,729,178

Series 2017C $4,500,000 Industrial Development Authority
Revenue Bonds collateralized by substantially all real
estate and equipment, with monthly interest only payments
at a variable interest rate, as defined in the bond documents
(2.96% as of Seplember 30, 2022) with a final balloon

payment paid on December 15, 2022 -0~ 3,300,000
Unsecured note payable to an individual, due on demand

with interest at 6%. Repaid in full during FY23. -0- 1,000
Total Long-Term Bebt 41,364,257 44,917,282
Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs 238,954 277,187
Total Long-Term Debt, Less Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs 41,125,303 44,640,095
Less: Current maturities 1,518,549 4,770,547
Long-Term Debt $ 39,606,754 $ 39,869,548
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Note 8: Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt, net of the annual amortization of deferred financing
costs, subsequent to September 30, 2023 are as follows:

Principal Deferred
Payments Financing Costs Total
Year ending September 30,

2024 $ 1,656,782 $ (38,233) % 1,618,549
2025 1,599,842 (38,233) 1,661,709
2026 1,518,497 (38,233) 1,480,264
2027 1,355,675 {38,233) 1,317,342
2028 1,594,253 (38,233) 1,556,020
Thereafter 33,739,208 {47,789) 33,691,419
Total $ 41,364,257 $ (238954) $ 41,125,303

The Series 2017 bonds contain various financial covenants, which are subject to periodic review by
the bank which the Organization was in compliance as of September 30, 2023 and 2022,

Interest Rate Swap Agreements: The Organization entered into two interest rate swap agreements
to alter the interest rate characteristics of its outstanding debt instruments. The Organization uses these
interast rate swap agreements to effectively convert its floating rate debt to a fixed rate basis, thus reducing
the impact of interest rate changes on future income. These agreements involve the receipt of fixed rate
amounts in exchange for floating rate interest payments over the life of the agreements without an exchange
of the underlying principal amounts. The differential to be paid or received is accrued as interest rates
change and recognized as an adjustment to interest expense related to the debt.

The Home has an interest rate swap agreement outstanding with Truist Bank with a notional amount
of $22,329,984 which is scheduled fo mature on December 15, 2028. The agreement has a fixed rate of
2.95%. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement as of September 30, 2023 and 2022 was
$1,537,979 and $1,172,365, respectively, representing an asset to the Home.

The Village has an interest rate swap agreement outstanding with Truist Bank with a notional amount
of $16,341,252 which is scheduled to mature on December 15, 2028, The agreement has a fixed rate of
2,95%. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement as of September 30, 2023 and 2022 was
$1,169,759 and $884,756, respectively, representing an asset to the Village.

Changes in the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements are reflected in the consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Interest Expense: Total interest expense on all long-term debt, including payments required under
the interest rate swap agreements and the line of credit, was $1,493,639 and $1,311,371 for the years ended
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Interest expense on the consolidated statements of functional
expenses also includes the amortization of deferred costs of $38,233 for both years.
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Note 9: Fair Value Measurement

GAAP establishes a framewark for measuring fair value, The framework provides a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1. Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

» Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
» Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
» Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

« Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means,

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement,

The asset's or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need
to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inpuis. The valuation
technigues used by the Organization include the following:

Money Market Funds: Valued at original cost, which approximates fair value,

Certificates of Deposit: Valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value,

Mutuat Funds and Common Stocks: Valued at the last sales price reported on the active
market in which the individua! security is traded.

Corporate Bonds, Municipal Bonds, Government Bonds and Mortgage/Asset Backed
Securities: Valued using inputs such as benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer
quotes and issuer spreads.

Preferred Stock: Preferred stock is valued based on expected future income streams as
stated by the class of stock and an assumed required rate of return based on observable market
data.

Interest in First Choice, LLC and MedRehab: Valued ufilizing the net asset valuations
provided by the general pariners or estimates of value as determined in good faith by the
respective investment manager.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements: Interest rate swap agreements are valued using
estimated future cash outflow projections based on internal assumplions regarding future
amortized debt balances.
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Note 9: Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

In determining the appropriate levels, the Organization performs a detailed analysis of the assets and
liabilities that are subject to fair value measurements.

The table below represents the balances of assets as of September 30, 2023 measured at fair value
on arecurring basis by level within the hierarchy:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Common stocks $ 13,036,249 % 13,036,249 $ 0- % -0-
Equity mutual funds 9,995,374 9,995,374 -0- -0-
Fixed income mutual funds 4,165,185 4,165,185 -0- -0-
Corporate bonds 2,644 144 -0- 2,644,144 -0-
Certificates of deposit 2,039,811 -0~ 2,039,811 -0-
Money market funds 1,910,635 1,910,635 -0- -0-
Government bonds 782,979 -0- 782,979 -0-
Municipal bonds 679626 -0- 679,626 -0-
Interest in First Choice, LLC 453,079 -0- ~0- 453,079
interest in MedRehab 75,000 -0- -0- 75,000
Mortgage/asset backed securities 38,728 -0- 38,728 Q-
Preferred stock 3,841 -0- 3.841 -0-
Interest rate swap agreements 2,707,738 -0- 2,707,738 -0-

Total $ 38,532.389 $ 20107443 $ 8896867 % 528,079

The table below represents the balances of assets as of September 30, 2022 measured at fair value
on a recurring basis by leve! with the hierarchy:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Common stocks $ 13,350,219 $ 13,350,219 § 0- % -0-
Equity mutual funds 10,413,319 10,413,319 -0- -0
Corporate bonds 3,108,803 -0- 3,108,803 -0-
Fixed income mutual funds 2,784,800 2,784,800 -0- ~0-
Money market funds 1,926,064 1,826,064 -0- -0-
Government bonds 637,969 -0- 637,969 -0-
Interest in First Choice, LLC 598,376 -0- -0- 598,376
Municipal bonds 332,186 -0- 332,186 -0-
Certificates of deposit 187,643 -0- 187,643 -0-
Mortgage/asset backed securities 45,946 -0- 45,946 -0-
Preferred stock 3,175 -0- 3,175 -0-
interest rate swap agreements 2,057,121 -0- 2,057,121 -0-

Total $ 35445621 $ 28474402 § 6372843 % 598,376
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Note 9: Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

The change in investments for which the Organization has used Level 3 inputs to determine fair value
is as follows:

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year $ 508,376 $ 675,040
Contributions ) 75,000 -0-
Distributions {244,891) {335,987)
Change in value 99 594 259,323
Balance at end of year $ 528,079 $ 598,376

Note 10: Net Assets

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Undesignated net assets without donor restrictions - Consists of the resources and obligations retated
to the daily operations of the Organization.

Board designated net assets without donor restrictions - The Organization has established the
following board designated funds with balances as of September 30, 2023 and 2022 as follows:

2022
2023 (Restated)
LiveWell Campaign $ 4,750,000 $ 2,465,340
Forever Family Board Designated Endowment Fund 3,841,981 2,546,242
Nursing Home Replacement Fund 3,049,170 2,738,059
Weliness Garden 127,500 -0-
Nursing Education Board Designated Endowment Fund -0- 1,064,230

$ 11,768,651 $ 8813871

LiveWell Campaign ~ consists of multiple funds designated by the Board of Directors for the purpose
of enhancing program services that will enrich the lives of the residents, team members and the greater
community, The LiveWell Campaign includes the following funds:

Energized Life Fund - designated for the purpose of supporting on-campus programming
to enhance wellbeing across eight distinct dimensions of wellness: physical, emoctional,
intellectual, social, vocational, environmental, financial and spiritual.

Work Well Fund - designated for the purpose of supporting team members with
scholarships for professional development, emergency financial relief in crisis situations,
programs to support health and wellness, and iraining programs that support the Organization's
culture of resident care and servant leadership.

Community Qutreach Fund - designated for the purpose of being an active contributing
member of the greater community by forging partnerships with other nonprofits and expanding
the Organization's outreach and volunteer sfforts. The fund helps to expand access to healthy
aging throughout the Shenandoah Valley.

-25-




BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 10: Net Assets {(Continued)

Farever Family Board Designated Endowment, a quasi-endowment fund - consists of funds that are
available to support operations in Independent Living, Assisted Living and Nursing Households for residents
who have exhausted their financial resources.

Nursing Home Replacement Fund - consists of a fund designated by the Board of Directors for the
purpose of establishing and maintaining a reserve for future nursing home replacement costs. The funds
are held in a separate investment account and classified as investments, limited as to use on the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Nursing Education Fund, a quasi-endowment fund - consists of a fund that was created when the
Board of Directors elected to manage a restricted gift as a quasi-endowment. The original gift was restricted
for the Organization’s nursing department for employee training and development. The Organization invests
the funds in its portfolio which provides unrestricted investment returns to fund nursing education. During
the year ended September 30, 2023, the Board of Directors elected to redesignate the Nursing Education
Fund to the LiveWell Campaign.

Wellness Garden - consists of funds that were designated by the Board of Directors to construct a
wellness garden on the grounds of the community.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

The Organization has several restricted funds, which may be fully expended but only for the purpose
established by the respective donors. Net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following
purposes as of September 30, 2023:

2022
(Restaled) Current Year Aclivity 2023
Total Released
Investment From
Conlribulions Relurn* Restriclions Transfers
Subject to expenditure for specific purposes:
Forever Family Endowment Fund $ 3309169 $ 0 % 983369 § (645,359) § -0- §  3647,470
Nursing Education Fund 1,792,055 -0- - -0- -0- 1,782,055
Special projects 520,610 433,064 -0- (184,772) (347,618) 421,284
Spidtual Life Endowment Fund 419,410 -0- 81,242 {105,621} -0- 395,031
6,041,244 433,064 1,064,611 (935,752) {347,618) 6,255,549
Subject to expenditure with the passage of time:
Bequests 331,000 46,500 -0- {127,500) -0- 250 000
Subject {o spending policy or appropriation:
Endowments
Forever Family Endowment Fund 7,217,560 186,038 -0- -0- -0- 7,403,508
Spiritual Life Erdowment Fund 412,574 42 110 -0- -0- -0- 454 684
7,630,134 228,148 -0- -0- -0- 7,858,282
$ 14002378 § 707712 § 1,064611 $ (1063252 § (347618} $ 14,363,831

*Includes realized and unrealized gains (losses)

During the year ended September 30, 2022, the Organization received donor contributions restricted
for the purpose of the previous LiveWell campaign. The Organization included these funds in net assets
restricted for special projects as of September 30, 2022. During the year ended September 30, 2023, the
respective donors released their restrictions, and the funds were transferred to the board designated
LiveWell Campaign. Total funds transferred and redesignated were $440,160.
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Note 10: Net Assets (Continued)

Prior to June 30, 2023, undesignated net assets without donor restrictions included the accounts of
Bridgewater Home Auxiliary (the Auxiliary), an independent, not-for-profit, tax-exempt organization which
raises funds through the Cottage Gift Shop, the ReRun Shoppe, and various fundraising events. On July 1,
2023, the cash accounts maintained by the Auxiliary were closed and transferred to the Organization. Upon
completion of the transfer, the Organization designated the transferred cash balance of $82,542, and all
future revenues and expenses (releases) of the Auxiliary as net assets with donor restrictions, The tfotal
balance of the Auxiliary fund is included in net assets restricted for special projects.

Net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following purposes as of September 30, 2022;

Prior Year Activity
2021 {Restated) 2022
Total Released
Investment From
Contributions Return* Restrictions Transfers

Subject to expenditure for specific purposes:

Forever Family Endowment Fund $ 5177179 § -0- $(1,260,386) § {607.624) $ 0- § 3,300,169
Nursing Education Fund 1,792,030 25 0- -0- -0- 1,792,065
Special projects 265,240 570,242 -0- {314,872) -0- 520,610
Spiritual Life Endowment Fund 606,992 -0- {96,492) {91,090) -0- 419,410
7,841,441 570,267  (1,356,878)  {1,013,586) -0- 5,041,244
Subject to expenditure with the passage of time;
Bequests 185,000 277,500 -0- (131,500) -0- 331,000
Subject to spending policy or appropriation:
Endowments
Forever Family Endowment Fund 6,933,080 284,480 -0- -0- -0- 7.217.560
Spirituat Life Endowment Fund 407 449 5,125 -0- -0- -0- 412,674
7,340,529 289,605 -0- -0- -0- 7,630,134
§ 15366970 § 1137372 ${1.356.878) & (1145086} 3 0- & 14002378

*Includes realized and unrealized gains (losses)

The Organization maintains the following donor-restricted endowment funds classified as restricted in
perpetuity. The original principal portion of the funds may not be expended.

Forever Family Endowment Fund: This fund was established for the purposes of supporting
operations in Independent Living, Assisted Living and Nursing Households for residents who have exhausted
their financial resources.

Spiritual Life Endowment Fund: This fund was established for the purposes of supporting operations
of Lantz Chapel, the work of two chaplains, and spiritual enrichment programming across campus - from
vespers and Bible studies to end-of-life care and team member spiritual care training program.

The income earned on the endowment funds is expendable but only for the purpose established by
the respective donors.

FASB issued guidance on the net asset classification of doner-restricted endowment funds for a
nonprofit organization that is subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act of 2006 (UPMIFA). This guidance also requires additional disclosures about an
organization's endowment funds (both donor-restricted endowment funds and board-designated endowment
funds) whether or not the organization is subject to UPMIFA.
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Note 10: Net Assets {Continued)

The Commonwealth of Virginia (the Commonwealth) has enacted the Uniform Prudent Management
of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). The Board of Directors of the Organization has interpreted the
Commonwealth's enacted version of UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original
qift, as of the gift date of donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.
As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as net assets with donor restrictions: (a} the
original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the
permanent endowment, and (¢) accumuiations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the
direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund, such as
net realized and unrealized gains {losses).

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified as net assets with
donor restrictions that are perpetual in nature is classified as net assets with donor restrictions that are
temporary in nature until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner
consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the
Organization considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumuiate donor-
restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the
donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possibie effect of inflation and
deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (8) other resources
of the Organization, and (7) the Organization's investment policies.

Investment Refurn Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies, approved by the Board of Directors,
for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its
endowment funds while also maintaining the purchasing power of those endowment assets over the long-
ferm. Accordingly, the investment process seeks to achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including
investment income as well as capital appreciation, which protecis the purchasing power of the fund against
inflation, with acceptable levels of risk. Endowment assets are invested in a well-diversified asset mix, which
include equity securities and debt obligations that is intended to result in a consistent inflation-protected rate
of return that has sufficient liquidity to make an annual distribution, while growing the funds if possible.
Therefore, the Organization expects its endowment assets, over time to produce an average rate of return
that is higher than the inflation rate in order to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment funds.
Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount. Investment risk is measured in terms of the
total endowment fund; investment assets and allocation between asset classes and strategies are managed
to not expose the fund to unacceptable levels of risk.

Spending Folicy

The Organization has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year not more than 4.5% for the
Forever Family Endowment Fund and 7% for the Spiritual Life Endowment Fund. In establishing this policy,
the Organization considered long-term expected return on its investment assets, the nature and duration of
the individual endowment funds which must be maintained in perpetuity because of donor-restrictions, and
the possible effects of inflation. The Organization expects the current spending policy to allow its endowment
funds to grow. This is consistent with the Organization's objective to maintain the purchasing power of the
endowment assets as well as to provide additional real growih through new gifts and investment return.
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Note 10: Net Assets {Continued)

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund as September 30, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

September 30, 2023:
Board designated endowment fund
Donor-restricted endowment funds

Total Net Endowment Assetls

September 30, 2022 (Restated):
Board designated endowment fund
Donor-restricted endowment funds

Total Net Endowment Assets

With Donor Restrictions

Total Net
Without Donor ~ Temporary Permanent Endowment
Restriction in Nature in Nature Assets
$ 3,841,981 § -0- 8 -0- § 3,841,981
-0- 4,042,210 7,858,282 11,800,492
$ 3841981 $ 4042210 $ 7,858282 § 15742473
$ 3610472 % 0- 0% -0- $ 3610472
-0- 3,728,579 7,630,134 11,358,713
$ 3610472 $ 37285679 $ 7630134 % 14,969,185

Changes in endowment net assets during the year ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 are as

follows:

Endowment net assets,
September 30, 2021 (Restated)

Contributions

Total investment return

Amounts appropriated for
expenditure

Endowment net assets,
September 30, 2022 (Restated)

Contributions

Board designated transfer

Total investment return

Amounts appropriated for
expenditure

Endowment net assets,
September 30, 2023

With Donor Restrictions

Tofal Net
Without Donor  Temporary Permanent Endowment
Restrictions in Nature in Nature Assets
$ 4404157 $§ 5,784171 $ 7,340,529 $ 17,528,857
-0- -0- 289,605 289,605
(747,640) (1,356,878) -0- (2,104,518)
(46,045) (698,714) -0- (744,759)
3,610,472 3,728,679 7,630,134 14,969,185
70,000 -0- 228,148 298,148
(242,595) -0- -0- {242 ,595)
489,847 1,064,611 Q- 1,654,458
(85,743) (750,980) -0- (836,723)
$ 3841981 $ 4042210 $ 7858282 3 15,742,473
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Note 11: Government Grants

On March 27, 2020, the President of the United States signed into law the Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
and Economic Security (CARES) Act in response to the economic fallout of the COVID-19 pandemic in the
United States. The CARES Act established the Provider Relief Fund (PRF) which supports healthcare
providers in their battle against the COVID-19 outbreak. During the year 2021 and 2020, the Home received
$99,176 and $934,048 of funding from the PRF. Under the CARES Act, a recipient of the PRF funding must
incur certain eligible expenditures related to the pandemic in order to recognize these funds as revenue.
Any PRF funding that is not expended is currently required to be refunded. During the year ended
September 30, 2021, the Home incurred $975,896 of qualified expenditures, and therefore, recognized this
amount of PRF funding as government grants {PRF) revenue for the year ended September 30, 2021. The
unearned portion of $57,328 was recorded as deferred revenue in the consclidated statements of financial
position at September 30, 2021. During the year ended September 30, 2022, the Home incurred additional
qualifying expenditures, and therefore, was able fo recognize the remaining $57,328 as government granis
(PRF) revenue during the year ended September 30, 2022.

Note 12: Estimated Future Service Obligations

The Organization was established to provide continuing care to qualified residents. GAAP requires
that facilities with continuing care contracts evaluate and accrue any projected losses in their resident
contracts. The Organization has made the required calculations and concluded that as of September 30,
2023 and 2022, the present value of future cash flows exceeds the present value of the projected costs
related to continuing care contracts. Accordingly, no accrual was required as of September 30, 2023 and
2022,

Note 13: Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution pension pian organized under IRC Section 403(b)
covering all full-time employees who work more than 20 hours per week. Under the terms of the plan,
participating employees may elect to contribute pre-tax and after-tax dollars up to the maximum limit
established by the IRS for each calendar year. The Organization will make a matching contribution equal to
100% of a participating employee's elective deferrals up to 6% of compensation, Total pension expense for
the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 was $562,221 and $469,626, respectively and is included
in employee benefits on the consclidated statements of functional expenses.

Note 14: Resident Cash Funds
The Home acts in an agency capacity regarding the holding of resident's cash funds. At

September 30, 2023 and 2022, the Home was holding $36,042 and $42,447 in resident’s funds, which have
not been reftected in these consolidated financial statements.

-30-




BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 15: Self-Insurance Plans

The Organization is self-insured for a significant portion of its employee health benefits, workers’
compensation and general liability programs. However, stop-loss coverage is maintained with third parly
insurers to limit individual claims and total expeosure under these programs. Under the self-insurance plans,
the costs to the Organization cannot exceed $50,000 per claim and an aggregate annual maximum of
$2,186,616, as defined in the plan doecuments. The Organization estimates an accrued liability for the
ultimate costs to close known claims, including claims incurred but not yet reporied as of the consolidated
statements of financial position. The recorded estimated liability for self-insurance is based on the insurance
companies incurred loss estimates and management's judgement, including assumptions and factors related
to the frequency and severity of claims, claims development history and claims settlement practices. The
assessment of self-insurance reserves is a highly subjective process that requires judgements about future
events. The ultimate settlement of self-insurance reserves may differ significantly from amounts accrued in
the consolidated financial statements. The recorded estimated liability for self-insurance was $155,588 and
$71,412 as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is included in accounts payabie on the
consolidated statements of financial pesition.

Note 16: Related Party Transactions

The Organization receives services from companies owned by board members for professional fees,
surveying fees, and other contracts. Payments for these services totaled approximately $181,000 and
$73,000 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Note 17: Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

Uninsured Balances: The Organization maintains its cash balances at various financial institutions.
Periodically during the year, the Organization’s cash balances may exceed federally insured limits. The
Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed fo significant
risk on cash balances.

Resident Service Revenue: The Organization receives revenue from Medicare, Medicaid and private
pay residents. The health care industry is continuing to experience the effects of the federal and state
governments’ trend toward cost containment, as government and other third-party payors seek to impose
lower reimbursement and utilization rates and negotiate reduced payment schedules with providers. Itis not
possible to fully quantify the effect of recent legislation, the interpretation or administration of such legisiation,
or any other government initiatives on the Organization’s business. Accordingly, there can be no assurance
that any future health care legislation will not adversely affect the Organization’s business. There can be no
assurance that payments under government and private third-party payor programs will be timely, will remain
at levels comparable to present levels, or will, in the future, be sufficient to cover the costs allocable to
patients eligible for reimbursement pursuant to such programs. The Organization’s financial position and
change in net assets may be affected by the reimbursement process, which in the health care industry is
complex and can involve lengthy delays belween the time that revenue is recognized and the time that
reimbursement amounts are seitled.

Investment Risk: The Organization invests in a professionally managed portfolio that may contain
mutual funds, corporate bonds and notes, government obligations, money market funds and other types of
investments. Such investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit. Due
to the level of risk associated with such investments and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the
value of such investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term could
materially affect investment batances and the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 18: Prior Period Adjustment

During the year ended September 30, 2023, management determined that the accumulated income
portion of the board designated Nursing Education Fund quasi-endowment was incorrectly classified as net
assets with donor restrictions. Accordingly, amounts reported as net assets without donor restrictions and
net assets with donor restrictions as of September 30, 2021 have been restated to correct this error.

Additionally, it was determined that investment income related to the board designated Nursing
Education Fund quasi-endowment were incorrectly classified as restricted revenue during the year ended
September 30, 2022. Accordingly, amounts reported as unrestricted investment income and restricted net
income for the year ended September 30, 2022 have been restated to correct this error.

The following is a summary of the effect of the prior period adjustment as of September 30, 2021 and
the restatement on the financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2022,

Prior Period Adjustment:
Net assets at September 30, 2021:
Without donor restrictions
Undesignated
Board designated funds
With denor restrictions

Total Net Assets

Restatement of 2022 Financial Statemenis
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assels
Without Donor Restrictions
Net investiment return
Unrealized loss on investments
Net assets released from restrictions
Satisfaction of program restrictions

Total Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions
Net investment return
Unrealized loss on investments
Net assets released from restrictions
Salisfaction of program restrictions

Total With Donor Restrictions

Change in Net Assets
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total Change in Net Assets

32~

Effect of
As Restatements
Previously and As

Reported Adjustments Restated
$ 26,766,797 $ -0- $ 26,766,797
6,252,912 1,448,395 7,701,307
16,815,365 (1,448,395} 15,366,970
_$ 49.835.074 3 -0- $ 49835074
$ 789,022 $ 101,034 $ 850,056
(4,074,781) (439,153) (4,513,944)
1,069,632 (46,048) 1,013,586
§ (2226137 $  {384.165) $ (2610302
$ 516,733 $ (101,034) 3 415,699
(2,211,730} 439,153 {1,772,577)
(1,059,632) 46,046 {1,013,586)
2 754 629 384,165 2.370.464
$ 2,743,101 $ (384,185 $ 2,358,936
{1,748,757) 384,165 {1,364,592)
$ 094,344 3 -0- 3 994 344
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidating and Supplementary Information

To the Board of Directors
Bridgewater HealthCare, Inc. and Affiliates
dfbfa Bridgewater Retirement Community

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bridgewater HeailthCare, Inc. and
Affiliates dib/a Bridgewater Retirement Community as of and for the years ended September 30, 2023
and 2022, and our report thereon dated January 23, 2024, which expressed an unmeodified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements, appears on pages 1 and 2. Our audits were conducted for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The
consolidating and supplementary information on the following pages is presented for purposes of
additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position,
results of operations and change in net assets of the individual companies and is not a required part
of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the consolidated financial statements. The consolidating and supplementary information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures inctuding comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to
the consclidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinicn, the
consolidating and supplementary information is fairly stated in all materiai respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole,

G, Mondeleotin v flasociatie, £ 4

Ballimore, Maryland
January 23, 2024

1801 Porter Street, Suite 500 3877 Fairfax Ridge Road, Suite 200N
Baltimore, MD 21230 Fairfax, VA 22030

THTERAMATIONRL

i 4 m(R INDEPENDENT
410.685.5512 | 800.899.4623 | f: 410.752.5042 703.591.7200 | f: 703.591.2858 WiW.gMa-Cpa.com MEMBER




BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

September 30, 2023

Assets

Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Contributions receivable
Investments, current
Inventories
Prepaid expensas
Accrued interest receivable
Due from related parties

Total Current Assels

Property, net of accumulated depreciation

Other Assets
Contributions receivable, net
Deposits
Investments, limited as to use
Investments, long-term
Interest rate swap agreements
Other assets

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Bridgewater

Bridgewater  Healthcare

Bridgewater  Bridgewater Healthcare, Foundation,

Home, Inc.  Village, Inc. Inc. Inc, Eliminations Total

$ 56777 $ 307,380 $ 1,418 § 1,501,868 § 0- % 1,866,943
703,785 2,163,206 22,783 46,163 -0- 2,935,937
-0- -0- -0- 50,000 -0- 50,000
3,348,536 3,395,084 1,828,179 16,345,400 0~ 24,917,199
107,112 49,058 32,519 22,703 -0- 211,392
194,092 47,724 784 649 -0- 243,249
0« 0- -0~ 43,530 -0~ 43,530
7,038,998 331,759 1,661,759 -0- (9,032,516} -0-
11,448,300 6,294,711 3,547,442 18,010,313 {9,032,516) 30,268,250
38,388,971 50,868,400 (- -0- ~0- 89,257 371
-0- 0- G- 200,000 0- 200,000
157,534 107,224 4,273 5,950 -0- 274,981
3,049,170 ~0- -0- -0- -0- 3,049,170
-0 «{- «0- 7,858,282 0- 7,858,282
1,537,979 1,169,759 -0- -0- -0- 2,707,738
3,338 24 -0- 9,40 -0- 12,762
4,748,021 1,277,007 4,273 8,073,632 -0- 14,102,933
$ 54,585,292 $ 58,440,118 $ 3,851715 § 26,083,945 9,032,516 133,628,554
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Bridgewater

Bridgewater  Healthcare
Bridgewater  Bridgewater Healthcare, Foundation,
Home, Inc. Village, Inc. Inc. Inc. Eliminations Total
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,132,697 § 205189 § 0- 0% 0% 0- $ 1,337,886
Accrued expenses -0- 142,402 -0- -0- -0- 142,402
Accrued compensation costs 368,011 109,944 117,336 16,718 -0- 1,112,009
Contract liabilities 23,536 -0- -0- -0- »0- 23,536
Line of credit 1,954,664 -0- - ~0- -0- 1,954,664
Current portion of split-interest obligations -0- -0- -0- 45,879 -0- 45,879
Current maturities of long-term debt 912,520 606,029 0- ~{- 0 1,518,549
Current portion of deferred entrance fees -0- 2,654,546 ~0- ~g- -0- 2,654,546
Due fo refated parties 1,661,759 1,359,009 -0- 6,011,74 {9,032,516) -0-
Total Curvent Liabilities §,553,187 5,077,419 117,338 6,074,345 {9,032,516) 8,789,471
Non-Current Liahilities
Split-interest obligations, net -0- -0- -0- 564,851 -0- 564,851
Long-term debt, net 20,381,184 19,225,590 -0- -0- -0- 39,606,754
Deferred entrance fees, net -0- 14,701,835 -0- -0- -0- 11,704,835
Refundable entrance fees -0- 19,501,702 -0- -{- -0- 19,504,702
Total Non-Current Liabilities 20,381,164 50,429,127 -0~ 564,851 0. 71,375,142
Total Liabilities 26,934,351 55,506,246 147,336 6,639,196 {9,032,518) 80,164,613
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions
Undesignated 24,601,771 2,933,872 3,434,379 (3,638,563) -0- 27,331,459
Board designated funds 3,049,170 -0- -0- 8,719,481 -{- 11,768,651
Total Without Donor Restrictions 27,650,941 2,933,872 3,434,379 §,080,918 -0~ 39,100,110
With donor restrictions -0- -0- -0- 14,363,831 -{)- 14,363,831
Total Net Assets 27,650,941 2,933,872 3,434,379 19,444,749 -0~ 53,463,941

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 54585202 §$58440118 §$ 3551715 §$ 26,083,945 § (9032516) $ 133,628554
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

September 30, 2022 {Restated)

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
investments, current
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accrued interest receivable
Due from related parties

Total Current Assets

Propetty, nel of accumulated depreciation

Other Assets
Contributions receivable, net
Deposits
Investments, limited as to use
Investments, long-term
Land held for sale
Interest rate swap agreements
Other assets
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Bridgewater

Bridgewater  Healthcare

Bridgewater  Bridgewater Healthcare, Foundation,

Home, Inc, Viilage, Inc. inc. Inc. Eliminations Total

$ 624158 § 716844 § 459 § 2816200 $ 0- § 4,157,661
652,426 2,048,975 19,317 14,183 0- 2,734,901
3,491,212 3,481,236 1,684,102 14,363,757 {0- 23,020,307
125,812 21,808 36,444 -0- -0- 184,164
175,036 34,302 310 256 -0- 209,904
-0- -0- -0- 22,620 -0- 22,620
8,177,897 331,009 1,675,297 -0- (10,084,203) -0-
13,246,541 6,634,274 3,315,829 17,217,016 {10,084,203) 30,329,557
39,268,740 49,758,864 176 -0- -0- 89,027,780
-0- -0- -0- 331,000 -0- 331,000
157,634 107,224 4,27 5,950 -0- 274,981
2,738,059 -0- -0- -0- 0- 2,738,059
-0- -0- -0- 7,630,134 0- 7,630,134
-0- -0- -0- 1,818,282 -0- 1,818,282
1,172,365 884,756 -0- -0- -0- 2,057,121
3,338 24 -0- 9,400 -0- 12,762
4,071,296 992,004 4,273 9,794,766 0- 14,862,339
$ 56586577 57385142 §3320378 $27.011,782 $ (10,084203) $ 134,219,676
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Liabilities and Net Assefs

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued compensation costs
Contract liabilities
Line of credit
Current porlion of split-interest obligations
Current maturities of long-lerm debt
Current portion of deferred entrance fees
Due to related parties
Totat Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilifies
Split-interest obligations, net
Long-term debt, net
Deferred entrance fees, net
Refundable entrance fees

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Without donor restrictions
Undesignated
Board designated funds
Total Without Donor Restrictions
With donor restrictions
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Bridgewater

Bridgewater  Healthcare
Bridgewater  Bridgewater Healthcare, Foundation,

Homs, Inc. Village, Inc. Ing. Inc. Eliminations Total
$ 1430120 $ 304903 % 0§ 0 3 0 § 1,744,023
105 144 675 -0- -0- -0- 144,780
810,734 115,488 140,574 15,244 -0- 1,082,040
51,840 -0- -0- G- -0- 51,840
1,918,997 -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,918,897
-G- -0- -0- 11,210 0- 11,210
4,187,524 583,02 -0- -0- -0- 4,770,547
-0- 2,512,388 -0- -0- -0- 2,512,888
1,575,208 2,450,748 -0- 6,058,157 {10,084,203 -0-
9,983,618 6,111,725 140,574 6,084,611 {10,084,203) 12,236,325
-0- -0- -0- 638,632 -0~ 638,632
21,292,601 18,576,947 -0- -0- -0- 39,869,548
-0- 10,906,832 -0- -0- -Q- 10,906,832
-0- 19,738,921 -{- -0- -0- 19,738,921
21,292 601 49,222 700 -g- 638,632 -0- 71,153,933
31,276,219 55,334,425 140,574 6,723,243 (10,084,203) 83,390,258
22,672,299 2,050,717 3,179,804 210,349 -0- 28,013,169
2,738,059 -0- -Q- 6,075,812 -Q- 8,813,871
25,310,358 2,050,717 3179,80 6,286,161 -0- 36,827,040
-0- -0- -0- 14,002,378 -0- 14,002,378
25,310,358 2,050,717 3,179,80 20,288,539 Q- 50,829,418
$ 56586577 $ 57385142 $3320,378 $27011.782 $ (10,084.203) § 134,219,676
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Without Donor Restrictions
Support and Revenue
Health care services:
Nursing care
Less contractual loss with Medicare
Less contraciual ioss with Medicaid

Assisted living
L.ess contraciual losses with Social Services
Less community service loss

Resident services:
Rental income
Service fees
Amoriization of enfrance fees
Gain on unit turnover

Pharmaceutical sales

Contributions

Support services

Fee for service revenue

Government grants - provider relief funds
Net investment refurn

Miscellaneous revenue

Net assels released from restrictions
Satisfaction of program restrictions
Satisfaction of lime restrictions
Transfer of program restrictions

Total Support and Revenue

Expenses
Program services
Supporting services;
Management and general
Fundraising
Total Expenses

income (Loss) from Operations

Other Income {Expense)
Unreatized gains on investmenis
Income from investment in partnership
Change in annuity value of spiit-interest obligations
Galn on disposal of fixed assets
Loss on disposal of land held for sale
Loss on impairment
Change in value of interest rale swap agreements
Total Other Income (Expense)

Change in Net Assets
without Donor Resfrictions

Bridgewater

Bridgewater  Healthcare
Bridgewater Bridgewater Healthcare, Foundation,
Home, Inc. Village, Inc. Inc. Inc. Eliminations Total
$ 20,189682 § 0- $ 0- % -0- -0-  $ 20,189,682
{1,767,540) -0- -0- -0- -0- (1,767,540)
{1,362,166) -0- -0- -0- -0~ (1,352,166)
17,069,976 -0- -0~ -0~ -0- 17,069,976
8,866,657 -0- -0- -0- -0- 8,866,657
{394,871) -0- -0~ -0- -0- (394,871)
{B16,308) -}« -0- -0- -0 (816,308)
7,655,478 -0- -0- -0- -Q- 7,655,478
-0- 209,083 -0 -0- -0- 209,083
2,089,359 5,872,993 -0- -0- (2,023,855) 5,938,497
-0- 2,684,079 -0- -0- -0- 2,684,079
-0- 1,066,820 -0- -0- -0- 1,066,820
2,089,359 9,832,875 -0- -0-  (2,023,855) 9,898,479
-0- Q- 308,131 - Q- 308,131
1,083,928 684,276 1,201 511,368  {1,794,378) 486,395
-0- -0- 3,019,936 o}~ (3,019,936) -0-
39,783 -0- -0- -0- -0- 39,783
0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
103,366 §4,888 44,768 434,847 ~{)- 637,849
59,985 60,347 -0- 10,905 (96,710) 34,537
1,287,062 799,511 3,374,026 957,120 (4,911,024) 1,506,695
~{- -0- «0- 935,752 -0- 935,752
-0- -0- -0- 127,600 -0- 127,500
-0- -0- -0- 347,618 -0- 347,618
28,101,875 10,632,486 3,374,026 2,367,990 (6,934,879) 37,541,498
23,644,646 8,668,935 1,067,633 2,426,444 (4,134,1886) 31,663,472
3,039,188 1,668,029 2,307,028 164,861 {2,726,696) 4,452 410
-0- -0- -0- 180,307 (73,997) 116,310
26,683,834 10,336,964 3,364,661 2,781,612 {6,934,879) 36,232,192
1,418,041 295522 9,365 (413,622) -0 1,309,306
550,228 314,195 145,616 498,378 BN 1,508,417
-0- -0- 99,594 -0- -0- 98,694
-0- -0- -0- (25,964) -0- (25,964)
6,700 -0- -0- -0- -0- 6,700
-0- -0- -0- {1,264,035) -0- {1,264,035)
-0- (11,565) -0- - -0- (11,665)
365,614 285,003 -0- -0- -0- 650,817
922,642 587,633 245,210 {791,621) -0- 963,764
$§ 2340583 $ 883155 § 254575 $ (1.205.243) -0- _§ 2273070
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC, AND AFFILIATES
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets {Continued)

Year Ended September 30, 2023

With Donor Restrictions
Support and Revenue

Change in Net Assels with Donar Restrictions:

Contributions

Net investment return

Uneealized gains on investments

Net assets released from restrictions
Satisfaction of program restrictions
Salisfaction of lime restrictions
Transfer of program restrictions

Change In Net Assets
with Donor Restrictions

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Net Assets at End of Year

Bridgewater

Bridgewater  Healthcare

Bridgewater Bridgewater Healthcare, Foundation,

Home, Inc. _ Viilage, Inc, Inc. Inc. Eliminations Total

$ 0§ Q- % 0 $ 707,712 0§ 0- § 707,712
-0- -B- -0- 885,629 -0- 885,529
-0- -0- -0- 179,082 -0- 179,082
-0- -0~ -0- {935,752) -0- {935,752)
-0- -0- -0- {127,500} -0- {127,500)
-{}- -0~ -0- {347,618) -0- (347.618)
$ 0 § 0 § O $ 361453 § 0-  § 361,453
$ 2,340,583 § 883155 $ 2545756 § (843,790) $ 0- $ 2634523
25,310,358 2,050,717 3,179,804 20,288,539 -0- 50,829,418
$ 27,650,941  $2,933,872 §$ 3,434,379 § 19,444,749 § -0-  § 53,463,904
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Nef Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2022 {Restated)

Without Donor Restrictions
Support and Revenue
Health care services:
Nursing care
Less contractual loss with Medicare
Less contractual loss with Medicaid

Assisted living
Less confractual losses with Social Services
Less community service loss

Resident services:
Rental income
Service fees
Amortization of enlrance fees
Gain on unit turnover

Pharmaceutical sales

Contributions

Support services

Fee for service revenue

Government grants - provider relief funds
Net investment return

Miscellaneous revenue

Net assets released from restrictions
Satisfaction of program restrictions
Satisfaction of time reskrictions

Total Support and Revenue

Expenses
Program services
Supporting services;
Management and general
Fundraising
Totat Expenses

Income {Loss) from Operations

Other Income (Expense}

Unrealized losses on investments

income from investment in partnership

Change in annuity value of split-interest obligations

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

l.oss on impairment

Change in value of interest rate swap agreements
Total Other income {Expense)

Change in Net Assets
without Bonor Restrictions

Bridgewater

Bridgewater  Healthcare

Bridgewater Bridgewater Healthcare, Foundation,

Home, In¢. Village, Inc. Inc, Inc. Eliminations Total

$ 18027675 § -0- % -0- % -0- % -0-  §$ 18,027,675
(1,484,261} -0- -0- -0- -0- (1,484,261}
(1,758,905} -0- -0- -0- -0- {1,758,905)
14,784,508 -0- -(- -0- -0- 14,784,500
7,345,650 -0- -0- -0- -0- 7,345,650
{369,934) -0- Q- -0- -0- (369,834)
{742,572) -0- -0- =0 -0- (742,572)
6,233,144 -0- -0- -(- -0~ 6,233 144
-0- 204,783 -0- -Q- ~0- 204,783
1,825,191 5,238,850 -0- -0- {1,728,760) 5,335,381
Q- 2,550,466 -0- -0- -0- 2,550,466
-0- 773,431 -0- -0- -0- 773,431
1,825,1%1 8,767,630 -0- -0- (1,728,760} 8,864,061
-0- -0- 298,729 -0- -0- 298,729
781,025 71,523 -0- 2,503,669 (878,548) 2,477,669
-0- -0- 2,971,824 -0- (2,971,824) -0-
69,396 -0- -0- -0- -0- 69,396
57,328 -0- -0- -0- -0- 57,328
262,463 178,110 88,881 360,602 -0- 890,056
186,222 258,112 528 21 {96,232} 348,651
1,356,434 507,745 3,359,862 2,864 292 (3,946,604} 4,141,829
-0- -0- -0- 1,013,586 -0- 1,013,586
-0- -0- ~{)- 131,500 -0- 131,500
24,189,278 9,275,375 3,359,462 4,009,378 (5,675,364} 35,168,629
21,122,813 8,129,273 1,079,419 1,487,175 (2,929,723) 28,888,957
3,388,221 1,632,820 2,164,349 154,365 (2,674,759} 4,664,996
-0- -0- -0- 238,742 (70,882} 167,860
24,511,034 9,762,093 3,243,768 1,880,282 (5,675,364} 33,721,813
{311,756) {486,718) 116,194 2,129,086 -0- 1,446,816
(1,533,028) {892,994) (331,030) (1,756,892) -0- (4,513,944)
-0- -0- 259,323 -0- -0- 259,323
-0- -0- -0- {20,797) Q- (20,787}
(13,651) (24,903) -0- -0- Q- (38,554)
-0- {11,565} -0- -0- -0- (11,565)
2,893,207 2,244 450 -0- -0- -0- 5,237,657
1,446,528 1,314,988 (71,707} (1,777,689) -0- 912,120
$ 1134772 $ 828270 § 44487 § 351407 % -0- $ 2358936

-40-

§
|
i
|
;
;
1
;



BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets {Continued)

Year Ended September 30, 2022 {Restated)

With Donor Restrictions
Support and Revenue
Change in Net Assets with Donor Restrictions:
Contributions
Net investment refurn
Unrealized losses on investments
Nef assets released from restrictions
Satisfaction of program restrictions
Satisfaction of time restrictions

Change in Net Assets
with Donor Restrictions

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Net Assels at End of Year

Bridgewater

Bridgewater  Healthcare

Bridgewater Bridgewater Healthcare, Foundation,

Home, Inc.  Village, Inc. Inc. Ing. Eliminations Total

$ Q- $ 9§ H- 0§ 1137372 % 0- % 1,137,372
-0- -0- - 415,699 -0- 415,699
-0- -0- -0- {1,772,577) -0- {1,772,577)
-0- -0- -g- {1,013,586) -0- {1,013,586)
-0- -0- -{- {131,500 (- (131,500)
$ 0- % 0 % 0§ {1,364,592) $ 0-  § (1364592)
$ 1134772 5 828270 § 44487 § (1013,185) § 0- § 994,344
24,175,686 1,222,447 3,135,317 21,301,724 -0- 49,835 074
$ 25,310,358  §2,050,717 $ 3179804 § 20288539 § -0-  § 50,829,418
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Consolidating Statement of Expenses
Year Ended September 30, 2023

Parsonnel expanses:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Total personnel expenses

Depreciation

Food

Interest

Utilities

Supplies

Insurance

Taxes and licenses
Technology service fees
Purchased repairs
Medical supplies
Professional fees
Management fees

Cost of prescriptions sold
Therapies, lab and pharmacy
Renovations

Support services

Refuse disposal
Telephone

Resident activities
Printing and poslage
Employee and public relations
Marketing

Professional development
Provision for bad debts
Repairs and maintenance
Grant related expenses
Dues and subscriptions
Transportation

Medical director
Equipment rentals
Long-range planning
Bank and credit card fees
Equipment replacement
Campaign expenses
Support of related organization
Occupancy
Miscellaneous

Total Expenses

Bridgewater
Bridgewater  Bridgewater  Bridgewater HealthCare
Home, Inc. Village, Inc. HealthCare, IncFoundation, Inc. Eliminations Total

$13,713,898 §$ 1,463,321 $ 1,911,824 $ 267,583 § 0- $ 17,356,626
982,920 107,305 131,383 18,418 -0- 1,240,026
1,681,901 244,250 278,144 47,576 - 2,251,871
16,378,719 1,814,876 2,321,351 333,577 -0- 20,848,523
1,883,474 2,447,691 298 447 0- 4,331,910
1,561,390 -0- -0- . ~0- -0- 1,551,390
785,443 739,507 -0- -0- 6,922 1,531,872
500,600 520,606 -0- -0- -0- 1,021,206
767,282 139,184 64,532 3,381 -0- 974,379
486,309 211,169 9,909 8,386 -0- 715,773
35,708 596,024 4,492 459 -0- 636,683
216,937 222,386 169,903 2,867 -0- 612,093
432,531 217,559 1,095 -0- (60,000) 591,185
449,961 -0- -0- -0- -0- 449,961
205,198 12,5652 128,699 9,320 -0- 355,769
286,776 -0- -0 -0- -0- 286,776
-0~ -0- 284,594 -0- -0- 284,594
264,475 -0- -0- -0- -0- 264,475
-0- 233,596 -0- -0~ -0- 233,596
1,715,969 2,915,859 32,363 118,783 (4,553,341) 229,633
174,781 -0- -0- -0- -0- 174,781
120,462 14,248 18,679 1,669 -0- 155,058
-0- 110,470 2,004 22,538 -0- 135,012
38,577 2,492 52,438 25,139 -0- 118,696
21,700 10,564 70,319 14,982 -0- 117,565
-D- -0- 117,450 -0- -0- 117,450
32,991 10,315 29,008 7477 -0- 79,791
87,282 3,317 -0- -0- -0- 70,599
7,472 34,213 5,612 4,232 -0- 51,529
44,756 -0- -0- -0- -0- 44,756
18,226 9,233 7,292 6,029 -0- 40,780
101,243 22,009 632 -0- (85,525) 38,359
36,000 -0- -0- -0- -0- 36,000
22,023 2,411 1,737 -0- -0- 26,171
-0- -0- 11,833 10,483 -0- 22,316
15,893 3,874 1,210 1,201 -0- 22,178
-0- 18,435 -0- -0- -0- 18,435
-0- -0- -0- 431 -0- 431
-0- -0- -0- 2,199,303 (2,199,303) -0-
-0- 10,908 21,816 10,908 {43,632) -0-
21,656 13,466 7,345 -0- -0- 42,467
$ 26,683,834 $10,336964 $ 3,364,661 § 2,781,612 § (6,934,879) § 36,232,192
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Consolidating Statement of Expenses
Year Ended September 30, 2022

Personnel expenses:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Total persannel expenses

Depreciation

Food

Interest

Supplies

Utilities

Insurance

Purchased repairs

Taxes and licenses
Technology service fees
Medical supplies
Provision for bad debts
Professional fees
Therapies, lab and pharmacy
Cosl of prescriptions sold
Management fees
Renovations

Resident activities
Telephone

Refuse disposal

Support services
Marketing

Printing and postage
Campaign expenses
Employee and public relations
Grant related expenses
Professional development
Repairs and maintenance
Transportation

Dues and subscriptions
Medical director
Equipment rentals

Bank and credit card fees
Long-range planning
Equipment replacement
Support of related organization
Ocecupancy
Miscellaneous

Total Expenses

Bridgewater

Bridgewater  Bridgewater Bridgewater HealthCare

Home, inc. Village, Inc.  HealthCare, Inc. Foundation, Inc. Eliminations Total
$11,957742 § 1363556 § 1810646 $ 242005 § -0-  $ 15,374,039
890,181 101,098 124,181 16,655 Q- 1,132,415
1,461,063 237,676 266,228 47,166 -0- 2,012,131
14,308,986 1,702,330 2,201,053 305,916 -0- 18,518,285
1,846,363 2,329,366 313 501 -0- 4,176,543
1,342,759 Q- -0- -0~ -0- 1,342,759
778,606 563,709 -0- -0- 7,289 1,349,604
719,498 133,887 47,304 3,887 -0« 904,576
400,528 503,804 -0- -0- -0- 904,332
488,717 201,294 9,835 8,368 -0- 708,214
385,281 353,297 445 -0- (60,000) 679,023
32,744 564,792 1,892 544 -0- 599,972
177,435 230,400 145,664 10,336 -{- 563,835
489,650 -0- -0- -0- -0- 489,650
381,702 -0- -0- -0- -0- 381,702
180,247 16,994 161,754 10,745 -0- 369,740
315,547 -0- -0- -0- -0~ 315,547
-0- -0- 272168 -0- -0- 272,168
263,582 -0- -0- -0- -0- 263,582
-0- 239,624 -0- -0- -0 239,624
-0- 148,005 3,858 25,968 -0- 177,831
122,667 16,975 18,270 1,453 -D- 159,365
155,834 -0- -0- -0- -0- 155,834
1,665,943 2627877 30,948 179,435 (4,351,981) 152,222
-0- -0- 144,581 -0- -0- 144,581
42,847 2,553 44,361 25,949 -0- 115,710
-0- -0- -0~ 114,185 -0- 114,185
13,257 5,769 70,258 13,458 -0- 102,742
69,396 -0- -0- -0- -0- 69,396
30,365 8,265 21,961 3,752 -0- 684,333
6,286 36,209 2,438 2,717 -0- 47,650
89,508 25,929 203 458 {72,000) 44,099
18,783 8,609 9,319 5,033 -0- 41,744
35,250 -0- -0- -0- -0- 35,250
24,949 2,343 1,56 -0~ ~0- 28,852
16,181 2,283 3,853 877 -0- 23,194
-0- -0- 22,188 671 -0- 22,859
-0- 20,723 -0- -0- -0~ 20,723
-0- -0- -0- 1,155,151 (1,155,151) -D-
-D- 10,881 21,76 10,878 {43,521) -0-
108,132 8,175 7,780 -0- -0- 122,087
$24511034 $ 9762093 § 3,243,768 § 1,880,282 § (5,675364) § 33,721,813
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Schedule of Expenses - Bridgewater Home, Inc.
Year Ended September 30, 2023

Food Village Village Laundry and
Administration _ Service Dining  Housekeeping Housekeeping Linen Service Maintenance
Personnel expenses:

Salaries $ 173,850 $ 1,165,269 $ 779,777 § 73414 $ 183,840 § 115499 $ 263,599
Payroll taxes 22,163 87,663 59,091 4,984 13,199 8,630 19,441
Benefils 25,706 208,457 121,877 19,934 44,256 23,559 47,770

Total personnel expenses 221,719 1,461,389 960,745 98,332 241,295 147,688 330,810
Depreciation 46,967 37,820 -0- 6,142 -0- 9,993 69,245
Support services 1,710,932 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Food -0- 1,086,697 464,693 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Interest 20,808 -0- -0- - -0- -0- -0-
Supplies 21,838 211,438 94,926 124,409 55 38,447 62,989
Utilities -0- -0- -0- 0- -0- 12,319 479,221
Insurance 486,309 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Medical supplies -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Purchased repairs 5447 49,005 24,382 2,479 -0- -0- 342,007
Management fees -0- 160,833 69,524 56,419 ~0- -0- 0-
Therapies, lab and pharmacy -0~ - -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Technology service fees 173,004 9,562 14,486 -0- -0- -0- 596
Professionat fees 32,137 13,494 -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,103
Refuse disposal - 81,725 -0- 93,056 -0- -0- -0-
Telephone 105,350 226 -0- 314 -0- -0- 4,598
Transperiation 10,799 -0- 0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Provision for bad debts 67,282 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Grant related expenses 44,756 -0~ -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Printing and postage 1,529 6,408 3,58 6 -0- -0- -0-
Medical director -0- -0- -0~ -0- -0- -0- -
Taxes and licenses 35,708 ~0- - -0- -0- -0 -0-
Professional development 4,121 0- -0- 240 -0- -0- 3
Equipment rentals -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Employee and pubtic relations 17,855 0- -0- - -0- -0- 280
Dues and subscriptions 12,370 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 720
Bank and credit card fees 15,288 -0- 605 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Repairs and maintenance 180 1,035 0- -0- -0- -0- 4,119
Miscellaneous 4,789 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

Total Expenses $ 3,039,188 $ 3,119,632 $1632942 § 381,960 $ 241,350 $ 208,447 §$ 1,295818
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Village Adult

Restorative  Beauty Beauty Care Soclal Volunteer Other

Nursing Care Shop Shop Activities  Services Services  Chaplaincy (Allocable) Totals
$10,262,519 $ 131,846 $ 112,669 $ 29579 § 68445 $ 157350 $ 65134 § 131,608 $ 0- $13,713,898
723,089 10,143 7,482 2,261 5,108 11,853 4,277 3,536 -0- 982,020
4,083,401 15,712 8,936 16,380 10,043 20,350 13,859 21,621 30 1,681,901
12,069,009 157,501 129,087 48,230 83,296 189,553 83,270 156,765 30 16,378,719
156,495 -0- 2,059 ~0- -0- 1,180 1,243 32481 1,519,879 1,883,474
-0- -0~ -0- -0- -0- -0- 5,037 -0- -0- 1,715,969
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- - -0~ 1,551,390
-0- -0- -0- -0- - -0- -0- Q- 764,635 785,443
190,570 982 1,226 9,794 3,794 1,528 4,763 523 -0- 767,282
-0- ~0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 9,060 -0- 500,600
-0- -0- -g- -0- -0- -0- -0~ -0- -0- 486,309
449,961 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 449,961
9,211 -0- -0- -0- ~0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 432,531
~0- -0- ~0- -0- Q- -0- ~0- -0- -0- 288,776
264,475 -0- -0- -0- 0- -0- -0- -0- o0+ 264,475
15,001 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 4,288 -0~ -0- 216,937
158,259 90 1186 -0- -0- ~0- -0- -0- -0- 205,198
-0- -0- -0- -0- ~0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 174,781
8,482 -0- Q- «0- -0- 1,15 -0- 334 -0- 120,462
4,486 ~0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 433 -0- 85,625 101,243
-0~ -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0~ -0- ~0- 67,282
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0 -0- -0- 44,756
22,584 -0- 0- -0- 0 15 3,59 -0- -0- 38,577
36,000 -0- 0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 36,000
-0- <0~ -0- -0- -0- -0 -0- -0- -0- 35,708
21,960 -0- -0- -0- 275 2,158 2,92 1,187 -0- 32,991
20,979 -0- Q- -b- -0- 1,044 -0- -0- -0- 22,023
3,490 75 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 21,700
M1 1,070 -0- 0- 50 -0- 2,269 1,036 0~ 18,226
-0- -0- -g- ~0- - -0- -0- -0- -0- 15,893
68 =0~ 1,733 -0- -0- -0- -0- 337 -0- 7,472
16,867 -0- (- - -0- -0- -0~ -0- -0- 21,656

$ 13,448,908 $ 159,718 §$ 134220 $§ 58024 $ 87415 § 196606 § 107,814 § 201,723 § 2,370,069 $ 26,683,834
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BRIDGEWATER HEALTHCARE, INC. AND AFFILIATES
Schedule of Expenses - Bridgewater Home, Inc.
Year Ended Septemher 30, 2022

Food Village Laundry and
Administration  Service Dining  Housekeeping Housekeeping Linen Service Maintenance
Personnel expenses:
Salaries $ 159031 $1,049671 $ 662,569 39,289 § $ 272815
Payroll taxes 12,185 77,844 49,656 2,648 20,146
Benefits 22,831 200,423 94 878 10,657 45101
Tota! personnel expenses 194,047 1,327,938 807,103 52 594 338,062
Depreciation 47,104 35,687 -0- 6,911 38,533
Support services 1,660,332 -0- -0- -B- -0-
Food -0- 037,278 405,481 -0- -0-
Interest 20,808 -0~ -0- -0- -0-
Supplies 36,424 206,008 B7.778 85,561 53,357
Medical supplies -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Insurance 488,717 Q- -0- -0- -0-
Utilities -0- -0- -0- -0- 378,559
Purchased repairs 3,54 32,469 11,992 6,564 330,118
Provision for bad debts 381,702 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Theraples, lab and pharmacy -0- -0- Q- -0- -0-
Management fees Q- 136,087 64,626 62,869 -0-
Professional fees 55,176 g0 -0- -0- 995
Technology service fees 148,557 -0- -0- -0- 7,037
Refuse disposal -0- 72.513 71 82,38 -0-
Telephone 101,416 698 -0- 801 7,908
Transportation 10,595 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Grant related expenses 69,396 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Printing and postage 4,112 8,356 3,077 3,044 -0-
Medical director -0- -0- -0- -0- Q-
Taxes and licenses 32,74 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Professional development 3,280 16 -0- -0- -0-
Equipment rentals -0- 0- 0- -0- 4
Dues and subscriplions 9,389 -0- -0- -0~ -0-
Bank and credit card fees 15,896 -0- 285 -0- Q-
Employee and public relations 6,770 0- -0- -0- Q-
Repairs and maintenance -0- -0- -0- -0- 4,24
Miscellaneous 98,213 -0~ -0- -0- -0-
Total Expenses $ 3388221 $ 2757139 % 1,380,813 300524 $ $ 1,159,060
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Viilage Adult
Restorative  Beauty Beauty Care Social Volunteer Other
Nursing Care Shop Shop Activities Services Services  Chaplaincy (Allocable) Totals
$ 8859738 $ 129657 $§ 95212 § 32622 § 68570 $§ 150,781 $ 63950 § 121,299 § 0- § 11,957,742
666,573 10,021 6,644 2,245 5,077 11,113 4,291 3,148 -0- 890,181
938,240 6,447 7,080 16,122 9,542 21,623 12,238 16,875 -0- 1,461,063
10,464,551 146,125 108,946 50,989 83,189 183,487 80,479 144,422 -0- 14,308,986
157,146 0- 1,725 -0- 254 964 1,041 31,505 1,514,632 1,846,363
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 5611 -0- -0- 1,665,943
-0- -0- -0- 0= -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,342,759
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 757,798 778,606
202,16 1,494 496 8,303 4,670 438 6,794 3,176 -0- 719,498
489,650 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 489,650
-0- - -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 488,717
-0- -0 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 8,658 -0- 400,528
9 -{- -0- -0- -0- - -0- -0- -0- 385,281
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 381,702
315,54 -0- -0- -0- -g- -0- -0- Q- -0- 315,547
-0- -0- -{0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 263,582
123,77 -0- 215 - -0- -0- -0~ -0- -0- 180,247
21,646 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 195 0- -0- 177,435
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 155,834
8,140 -0- 155 -B- -0- 1,279 -0- 606 -0- 122,667
5,853 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,061 -0- 72,000 89,509
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 69,396
23,024 -0- -0 -0- -0- 35 1,199 0- -0- 42,847
35,250 -0- - -0- -0- -0- 0- -0- -0- 35,250
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 32,744
24,922 -0- -0 -0- 0- -0- 1,87 6 -0- 30,355
21,937 -0- -{- -0- -0- 2,764 -0- -0- -0- 24,949
6,353 -0- -0- -0- 75 -0- 1,456 1,51 -0- 18,783
-§- -0- -§- -0- 0- -0- 0 -0- -0- 16,181
6,48 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 13,257
1,715 -0- -0- -0- 0- -0- -0- 328 -0- 6,286
8,919 -0- -0- -0- -0- -G- -0- 0- -0- 108,132
$11918666 § 147619 § 111537 § 59282 § 88188 § 188067 § 99712 § 190467 $ 2344430 $ 24,511,034
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BRIDGEWATER VILLAGE, INC.
Operating Budget

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2024

REVENUE
Independent Living Services $10,096,891
Investment Revenue 230,729
Total Revenue $10,327,620
EXPENSES
Dining Services $1,684,281
Environmental Services $5,386,062
Resident Services S 727,337
General & Administrative $1,807,389
Interest S 710,675
Amortization & Loan Costs S 19,925
Other S 377,500
Total Expenses $10,713,169
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS S (385,549)

MAJOR BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS

- Occupancy of 94.59% Fee increase of $69 per month (6.00%)

662493



Summary of Financial Information

Bridgewater Village, Inc.

9/30/2023
Current Year Prior Year
Total Assets $58,440,118 $57,385,142
Total Liabilities $55,506,246 $55,334,425
Total Net Assets $2,933,872 $2,050,717
Total Revenues $11,231,684 $11,519,825
Total Expenses $10,348,529 $10,691,555
Operating Income (Loss) | $295,522 (5486,718)
Net Income (Loss) $883,155 $828,270
Occupancy Information: Capacity of Average Percentage
Units Occupancy Occupancy
Independent Living 274 271.15 98.95%
Assisted Living 98 90.18 92.02%
Nursing 127 121.79 95.90%
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